2015

Annual Financial Statements
of the ING Bank Slgski S.A.
for the year 2015




ING Bank Slgski S.A.

Annual financial statements for the period from 01 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 (PLN million)
Contents 21 Receivables from customers due to repo transactions 82
22 Investmentsin controlled entities 83
of the ING Bank Slgski S.A. 24 Assets held for sale 88
Income statement 1 25 Income tax assets/liabilities 89
26 Otherassets 91
Statement of comprehensive income 2 o
27 Liabilities due to other banks 91
Statement of financial position 3 28 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 91
Statement of changes in equity 4 29 Liabilities due to customers 92
Cash flow statement 5 30 Liabilities under repurchase transactions made with 94
customers
Accounting policy and additional notes 6 31 Liabilities under issue of debt securities 94
| Bank details 6 32 Provisions 95
Il Significant events in 2015 7 33 Other liabilities 97
Il Statement of compliance with International Financial 14 34 Share capital 97
Reporting Standards 35 Revaluation reserve 97
IV Significant accounting principles 16 36 Retained eamings 99
. . 37 Currency structure of statement 101
v Comparability of financial data 52 of financial position and off-balance sheet items
VI Notes to the financial statements 52 38 Contingent liabilities 106
1 Segmentreporting 52 39 Hedge accounting 107
2 Netinterestincome 57 40 Fairvalues 110
3 Netcommissionincome 58 41 Offsetting financial instruments 119
4 Netincome on financial instruments at fair value 59 42 Custody activities 120
through profit or loss and FX result 43 Operating leases 121
5 Netincome oninvestments 59 44  Additional information on cash flow statement 121
6 Netincome on hedge accounting 59 45 Related entities 124
7 Netincome on other basic activities 60 46 Transactions with the management staff and 126
8 General and administrative expenses 60 employees
9  Impairment losses and provisions for off-balance 63 47 Headcount 129
sheet liabilities 48 Significant events after the balance sheet date 129
10 Income tax 65
11 Earnings per ordinary share 66 Risk Management in ING Bank $lgski S.A. 131
12 Dividends paid/proposed 66
13 Cashin hand and balances with the Central Bank 66 I Credit Risk Management 131
14 Loans and receivables to other banks 67 Il Market Risk Management 157
15 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 67 Ill Liquidity Risk Management 164
16  Valuation of derivatives 68 IV Other material risks management 171
17 Investments 69
18 Assets securing liabilities 74 V Regulatory and Economic Capital Management 174
19 Derivative hedge instruments 75

20 Loans and receivables to customers 76




ING Bank Slgski S.A.
Annual financial statements for the period from 01 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 (PLN million)

Income statement

for the year ended 31 December

Note 2015 2014
Going concern*
Interest income 2 3483.6 3578.7
Interest expenses 2 1140.1 1367.5
Net interest income 2 23435 2211.2
Commission income 3 1055.9 1097.4
Commission expenses 3 104.6 94.5
Net commission income 3 951.3 1002.9
b s e
Net income on investments 5 245.5 68.1
Net income on hedge accounting 6 22.9 8.9
Net income on other basic activities 7 -1.4 13.0
Net income on basic activities 3643.7 33935
General and administrative expenses 8 2 035.0 1814.2
Impairment losses and provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities 9 212.8 243.4
Gross profit (loss) 1 395.9 1 335.9
Income tax 10 255.9 268.0
Net profit (loss) attributable to shareholders of ING Bank Slgski S.A. 1140.0 1067.9
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 130 100 000 130 100 000
Earnings per ordinary share (PLN) 11 8.76 8.21

*) As far as comparable data are concerned. there were no discontinued operations at the Group in the year ended
31 December 2015.

The diluted earnings per share are the same as the profit per one ordinary share.

Income Statement shall be analyzed together with the notes to the financial statements being the integral part thereof.
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Statement of comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 December

Note 2015 2014
Net profit for the period 1140.0 1067.9
Total other comprehensive income, including: -383.4 1359.0
Items which can be reclassified to income statement, including: -379.9 1360.3
Gains/losses on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets carried through equity 35 13.4 291.8
including deferred tax -3.2 -68.5
Reclassification to the financial result due to sale of available-for-sale financial assets 35 -47.2 -4.3
including deferred tax 11.1 1.0
Amortis_ation of gains or lc_>sses previously recognised in equity concerping secur_ities 35 284 0.0
re-classified from the available-for-sale portfolio to the held-to-maturity portfolio
including deferred tax 6.7 0.0
Effective part of cash flow hedging relationship 35 -317.7 1072.8
including deferred tax 74.5 -251.7
Items which will not be reclassified to income statement, including: -3.5 -1.3
Revaluation of non-current assets 35.36 -3.7 -4.1
including deferred tax 0.8 -0.1
Disposal of non-current assets 35.36 0.7 15
including deferred tax -0.1 -0.3
Actuarial gains/losses 35 -0.5 13
including deferred tax 0.1 -0.3

Net comprehensive income for the reporting period 756.6 2426.9

Statement of Comprehensive Income shall be analyzed together with the notes to the financial statements being the integral
part thereof.




ING Bank Slgski S.A.
Annual financial statements for the period from 01 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 (PLN million)

Statement of financial position

as at 31 December

Note 2015 2014
Assets
Cashin hand and balances with the Central Bank 13 3589.7 5330.7
Loans and other receivables to other banks 14 1013.1 1821.3
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15 11271 1856.8
Valuation of derivatives 16 1990.9 2411.7
Investments 17 23 478.7 22 828.6
Derivative hedge instruments 19 2 454.8 2983.8
Loans and other receivables to customers 20 69 633.4 57952.1
Receivables from customers under repo transactions 21 1354.4 106.6
Investments in controlled entities 22 269.3 269.2
Non-financial assets 23 1036.1 1002.5
Assets held for sale 24 38.4 68.4
Other assets 26 120.0 110.7
Total assets 106 105.9 96 742.4
Liabilities
Liabilities to other banks 27 1855.4 3644.2
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 28 629.4 917.4
Valuation of derivatives 16 2002.8 25213
Derivative hedge instruments 19 1830.9 2032.8
Liabilities to customers 29 87 383.7 75 326.0
Liabilities to customers under repo transactions 30 47.5 29.7
Liabilities under issue of debt securities 31 866.3 866.5
Provisions 32 63.8 70.3
Tax liabilities 25 153.7 248.5
Other liabilities 33 787.2 837.9
Total liabilities 95 620.7 86 494.6
Equity
Share capital 34 130.1 130.1
Supplementary capital - issuance of shares over nominal value 956.3 956.3
Revaluation reserve 35 1474.1 1869.0
Revaluation of share-based payments 49.2 48.0
Retained earnings 36 7 875.5 7 2444
Total equity 10 485.2 10 247.8
Total equity and liabilities 106 105.9 96 742.4
Carrying amount 10 485.2 10 247.8
Number of shares 130100000 130100000
Carrying amount per share (PLN) 80.59 78.77

Statement of Financial Position shall be analyzed together with the notes to the financial statements being the integral part
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Statement of changes in equity

the period from 01 Jan 2015 to 31 Dec 2015

Notes: 34. 35. 36

Supplementary

Share capital -issuance = Revaluation Revaluation of Retained .
; share-based ) Total equity
capital of shares over reserve auments earnings
nominal value Py
Opening balance of equity 130.1 956.3 1869.0 48.0 7 244.4 10 247.8
Net result for the current period - - - - 1140.0 1140.0
Other net comprehensive income, including: 0.0 0.0 -394.9 0.0 11.5 -383.4
gains/losses on revaluation of available-for-sale financial R B R B
assets carried through equity 134 134
reclassification to the financial result due to sale
of available-for-sale financial assets ) ) 4712 ) ) 7.2
amortisation of gains or losses previously recognised in
equity concerning securities re-classified from the - - -28.4 - - -28.4
available-for-sale portfolio to the held-to-maturity portfolio
effective part of cash flow hedging relationship - - -317.7 - - -317.7
revaluation of non-current assets - - -3.7 - - -3.7
disposal of non-current assets - - -10.8 - 115 0.7
actuarial gains/losses - - -0.5 - - -0.5
Transactions with shareholders, including: 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2 -520.4 -519.2
valuation of share-based payments - - - 1.2 - 1.2
dividends paid -520.4 -520.4

Closing balance of equity 130.1 m 1474.1 78755 10485.2

the period from 01 Jan 2014 to 31 Dec 2014

Notes: 34. 35. 36

supplementary Revaluation of

Share capital -issuance | Revaluation Retained .
capital of shares over reserve share-based earnings Total equity
nominal value payments
Opening balance of equity 130.1 956.3 513.4 46.1 6 682.0 8327.9
Net result for the current period - - - - 1067.9 1067.9
Other net comprehensive income, including: 0.0 0.0 1355.6 0.0 3.4 1359.0
ains/losses on revaluation of available-for-sale financial
gssets carried through equity ) ) 2918 ) ) 2918
reclas§iﬁcation tothe ﬁnunFial result due to sale B B 43 B ~ 43
of available-for-sale financial assets
effective part of cash flow hedging relationship - - 1072.8 - - 1072.8
revaluation of non-current assets - - 0.2 - -4.3 -4.1
disposal of non-current assets - - -6.2 - 7.7 1.5
actuarial gains/losses - - 13 - - 1.3
Transactions with shareholders, including: 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.9 -508.9 -507.0
valuation of share-based payments - - - 1.9 - 1.9
settlement of subsidiary acquisition - - - - 63.5 63.5
dividends paid -572.4 -572.4

Statement of Changes in Equity shall be analyzed together with the notes to the financial statements being the integral part
thereof.
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Cash flow statement

for the year ended 31 December

Note 2015 2014
Net profit (loss) 1 140.0 1067.9
Adjustments -1 395.4 -2 185.5
Depreciation and amortisation 8.23 185.2 171.5
Interest accrued (from the income statement) 2 -2 343.5 -2211.2
Interest paid -1148.3 -1389.3
Interest received 34613 34437
Dividends received 5 -99.2 -67.5
Gains (losses) on investing activities -87.6 -6.7
Income tax (from the income statement) 10 255.9 268.0
Income tax paid -350.7 -67.8
Change in provisions 32 -6.5 6.6
Change in loans and other receivables to other banks 14.44 664.1 -337.2
Change in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15.44 729.6 95.5
Change in available-for-sale financial assets 17.44 286.0 -2959.1
Change in valuation of derivatives 16 -97.7 87.9
Change in hedge derivatives 19 9.4 59.3
Change in loans and other receivables to customers 20. 44 -12903.8 -8 256.1
Change in other assets 69.8 177.6
Change in liabilities to other banks 27. 44 -1788.5 1622.7
Change in liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 28 -288.0 -316.8
Change in liabilities to customers 29.44 12 107.1 7 496.2
Change in other liabilities -50.0 -2.8
Net cash flow from operating activities -255.4 -1117.6
Purchase of property plant and equipment 23 -137.2 -123.4
Disposal of property. plant and equipment 51 0.2
Purchase of intangible assets 23 -129.1 -76.2
Purchase of sharesin controlled entities 22 -0.1 -10.0
Disposal of assets held for sale 129.1 7.3
Purchase of held-to-maturity financial assets 17 -1138.6 0.0
Interest received from held-to-maturity financial assets 87.6 0.0
Dividends received 5 99.2 67.5
Net cash flow from investing activities -1 084.0 -134.6
Issue of debt securities 31 0.0 300.0
Interest on debt securities issued -23.9 -20.4
Dividends paid 12 -520.4 -572.4
Net cash flow from financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents -40.5 198.9
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents -1 883.7 -1545.0
Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents 6 294.1 7 839.1
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents 44 4 410.4 6294.1

Cash Flow Statement shall be analyzed together with the notes to the financial statements being the integral part thereof.
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Accounting policy and additional notes

. Bank details

1. KeyBank data

ING Bank Slgski S.A. ("Bank”, “Company”) with the registered office in Katowice, at ul. Sokolska 34,
was entered into the Entrepreneurs Register with the National Court Register maintained
by the Commercial Division of the District Court in Katowice under the number KRS 5459.
The Bank statistical number is REGON 271514909, and the tax identification number
is NIP 634-013-54-75.

2. Scope and duration of operations

ING Bank Slgski S.A. offers a broad range of banking services rendered to individual
and institutional clients in line with the scope of services outlined in the Bank's charter.
The Bank runs operations both in the home currency and in foreign currencies.
The Bank is also active in the domestic and foreign financial markets. The duration of the Bank
business was determined as indefinite in the Bank’s charter.

3. Share capital

The share capital of ING Bank Slgski S.A. is PLN 130,100,000 and is divided in 130,100,000 ordinary
bearer shares of a par value of PLN 1.00 each. Bank’s shares are quoted on the Warsaw Stock
Exchange (sector: banks).

4, Shareholding structure of ING Bank Slgski S.A.

ING Bank Slgski S.A. is a subsidiary of ING Bank NV, which as at 31 December 2015 held 75% share
in the share capital of ING Bank Slgski S.A. and 75% shares in the total number of votes
at the General Meeting. ING Bank NV belongs to the Group, herein referred to as ING Group.

As at 31 December 2015, the shareholders owning 5% and more votes at the General Meeting
of ING Bank S.A. were:

% of total number of shares

No. Entity Number of shares and votes and votes

at General Meeting
1. ING Bank NV 97,575,000 75.00
2. AVIVA Otwarty Fundusz Emerytalny AVIVA BZ WBK 7,601,000 5.84

5. Entity authorised to audit the financial statements

KPMG Audyt Spotka z ograniczong odpowiedzialnoscig Sp.k. with registered office in Warsaw
is the entity authorised to audit the financial statements.

6. Approval of financial statements

These annual financial statements of the ING Bank Slgski S.A. for the period from 01 January 2015
to 31 December 2015 have been approved by the Bank Management Board on 22 February 2016.

ING
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The annual consolidated financial statements of the ING Bank Slgski S.A. Group for the period from
01 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 shall be published and approved on the same day
as the standalone financial statements.

The annual financial statements of the ING Bank Slgski S.A. for the period from 01 January 2014
to 31 December 2014 were approved by the General Meeting on 31 March 2015.

Il. Significant events in 2015

1. Bank Guarantee Fund’s resolution on mandatory contribution from the guaranteed
deposits fund

On 26 November 2015, the Bank received from the Bank Guarantee Fund (“BGF”) BGF Management
Board Resolution No. 87/DGD/2015 concerning payout of guaranteed funds to the depositors
of Spétdzielczy Bank Rzemiosta i Rolnictwa in Wotomin and a notice to make a contribution
of PLN 157.4 million by 30 November 2015 to BGF for the payout of guaranteed funds under
the deposits accumulated in Spoétdzielczy Bank Rzemiosta i Rolnictwa in Wotomin. The payment
amount augmented the Bank's general and administrative expenses for 2015.

2. Impact of the Visa Europe takeover by Visa Inc. transaction

The Management Board of ING Bank Slgski S.A. received the information regarding the proposed
allocation of settlement of the Visa Europe Limited (Visa Europe) takeover by Visa Inc. transaction.
The transaction is contingent on obtaining relevant regulatory consents and its closing is forecast
for Q2 2016. The transaction value (Visa Europe value) was determined at EUR 16.5 billion, payable
upfront, out of which EUR 11.5 billion is to be paid out in cash and EUR 5 billion in preference shares
of Visa Inc. Furthermore, the transaction provides for the earn-out - a deferred payment
up to the amount of EUR 4.7 billion payable in cash after 16 quarters from the transaction
settlement.

As a Visa Europe member, ING Bank Slgski S.A. will be one of the transaction beneﬁciaries.’ Pursuant
to the information received, the potential transaction settlement impact on ING Bank Slgski S.A.
is EUR 31.1 million in cash and EUR 10.7 million in shares.

The above amounts can be adjusted with the transaction costs and following potential justified
requests for adjustment of the awarded amounts submitted by Visa Europe members. Visa Europe
members hold the right to appeal. The process of reviewing appeals will last until 01 March 2016.
On 01 March 2016, the allocation decisions will become final and binding.

The impact of the deferred payment (earn-out) on the Bank’s result is unknown. The condition
for taking advantage of the earn-out option is being qualified to up-front allocation and membership
in Visa for 4 subsequent years from the transaction closing date.

The Bank recognises the shares of Visa Europe Limited in the category of financial assets available
for sale. As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of the aforementioned shares was set on the basis

of the forecasted value of the transaction settlement allocation and recognised in the revaluation
reserve.

3. Borrower Financial Assistance Fund

In 2015, ING Bank Slgski S.A. formed a provision to cover the costs of the Borrower Financial
Assistance Fund contribution of PLN 6.4 million (under the Act on Support for Borrowers in a Difficult
Financial Situation of 09 October 2015 concerning the borrowers who drew housing loans).
On 12 January 2016, the Bank received a letter from the Borrower Financial Assistance Fund Council
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reading that the amount of contribution to be paid by ING Bank Slgski S.A. was PLN 6.6 million.
The payment was made on 17 February 2016.

4, ING Bank Slgski S.A. Supervisory Board’s consent to ING Bank Slgski S.A. taking
a subordinated cash loan

On 27 November 2015, the Bank Supervisory Board granted consent to ING Bank Slgski S.A. taking
a subordinated cash loan up to the total amount of EUR 300 million. The Supervisory Board
empowered the Management Board of ING Bank Slgski S.A. to determine under the above referred
limit detailed conditions of the said cash loan.

5. Credit Agreement with ING Lease (Polska) Sp. z 0.0. - amendment

On 12 November 2015, the Bank signed with ING Lease (Polska) Sp. z o.0. and annex
to the credit agreement of 19 January 2012 along with subsequent amendments, whereby
the amount of the facility granted to that company was increased by PLN 1.0 billion
up to PLN 4.5 billion. The total exposure of the Bank towards ING Lease (Polska) Sp. z o.o.
and its subsidiaries is PLN 4,801,920,000.00. The criterion for regarding the agreement as significant
is the total exposure value exceeding 10% of the Bank’s equity. The Borrower is an affiliated entity
of ING Bank Slgski S.A.

6. PFSA’s stance on the banks dividend policy

On 15 December 2015, the Polish Financial Supervision Authority (PFSA) published its stance
on the banks dividend policy in 2016 (dividend for 2015). In order to ensure further stable operations
of banks in Poland, PFSA recommends the dividend policy to banks which will further consolidate
their capital base and adjust it to the levels held by other European Union member states. The PFSA
recommends in particular that the dividend be paid out solely by banks meeting the below criteria:

» banks which do not pursue the corrective programme,
> their BION final score is not worse than 2.5, and

> their financial leverage is above 5%,

> Tier 1 ratio plus the security buffer:

» banks with over 5% share in the non-financial sector deposits - from 13.25% plus 75%
of potential capital add-on for FX loans risk,

o other commercial banks - higher than 11.25% plus 75% of potential capital add-on
for FX loans risk.

PFSA recommends the following:

» up to 50% of the generated profit be released by the banks meeting regulatory expectations
concerning the total capital ratio i.e. the ones with total capital ratio over 13.25% plus 100%
of potential capital add-on for FX loans levied by PFSA on banks individually
on 23 October 2015,

» up to 100% of the generated profit be released by the banks meeting requlatory expectations
concerning the total capital ratio elevated by the safety buffer:

« the bank having more than 5% share in the non-financial sector deposits - having the
total capital ratio over 16.25% plus 100% of potential capital add-on for FX loans
levied by PFSA on banks individually on 23 October 2015,
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o other commercial banks - having the total capital ratio over 14.25% plus 100%
of potential capital add-on for FX loans levied by PFSA on banks individually
on 23 October 2015.

Based on financial results as at 31 December 2015, the banks will receive individual
recommendations on dividend policy in a letter from the Chairman of the Polish Financial Supervision
Authority.

7. Determination of minimum T1 and TCR capital ratios in effect since 1 January 2016

In their letter of 22 October 2015 addressed to all banks, the Polish Financial Supervision Authority
requested them to increase the mandatory T1 and TCR ratios as of 1 January 2016 by 1.25 p.p.
following the institution of the capital conservation buffer. This means that the minimum Common
Equity Tier 1 ratio (T1) and the Total Capital Ratio (TCR) will increase to 10.25% and 13.25%
respectively (from 9% and 12% in effect as at 31 December 2015).

8. Judgement of the Appeals Court as regards the fine imposed by the Office
of Competition and Consumer Protection in 2006

On 06 October 2015, the Appeals Court in Warsaw issued their judgement on the interchange fees,
overruling the judgement of the Regional Court in Warsaw which was appealed against.
In consequence of the ruling of the Appeals Court, the decision made in 2006 by the President
of the Office of Competition and Consumer Protection (the Office) became final and binding.
Under the decision, the President of the Office recognised that banks - decision addressees - were
employing competition-limiting practices in the acquiring services market in respect of payment
of liabilities towards merchants by consumers with the use of payment cards by mutually fixing
the interchange fees. Under the said decision, a fine of approximately PLN 164.7 million was imposed
on the banks as well. ING Bank Slgski S.A. was bound to pay PLN 14,088,270. In the previous years,
the bank formed a provision to cover the projected costs of the said fine in 100%.

9. Dividend from ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. Company

On 22 June 2015, the Ordinary General Meeting of ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A.
(ING PTE) passed a resolution on 2014 dividend payout. As per the share purchase agreement
concerning sale of 20% of ING PTE shares to ING Continental Europe Holdings B.V. (the share
purchase agreement is described in item 10. Sale of shares of the ING Powszechne Towarzystwo
Emerytalne S.A. Company), the dividend for 2015 for the bundle of shares covered by the said
agreement was included in the agreed share selling price (the total price of PLN 210 million).

The dividend was paid on 23 June 2015. As per the ING PTE General Meeting Resolution, the amount
of the dividend due to the Bank was PLN 82.1 million.

10. Sale of shares of the ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. Company

On 10 February 2015, the Bank signed a share purchase agreement of a block of 20% of shares
of ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. (ING PTE) for the benefit of ING Continental Europe
Holdings B.V. (ING CEH). The selling price of the shares has been set in the agreement
at PLN 210 million. As per the Letter of Intent of 06 May 2014, the price was reduced by the dividend
paid out for the year 2013 and other adjustment elements set out in the above Letter. Independent
fairness opinion issued by PwC Polska Sp. z 0.0. confirmed that the price was set on an arm’s-length
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basis.

On 07 July 2015, the Polish Financial Supervision Authority (PFSA) approved the purchase
by NN Continental Europe Holdings B.V. (former ING Continental Europe Holdings B.V.) of 20%
of shares of the ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. Company’.

On 20 July 2015, the Bank transferred the ownership of 20% of shares of ING Powszechne
Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. onto the buyer. The shares offer price was PLN 210 million (including
PLN 82.1 million under dividend). The net result on the sale of ING PTE's shares was PLN 71.2 million.

11. Sale of non-performing receivables portfolios

» 0On 23 July 2015, the Bank concluded an agreement on the sale of a portion of corporate
receivables from the impaired portfolio. The positive impact of the transaction on the Bank’s risk
costs was PLN 9 million,

» On 08 July 2015, ING Bank Slgski S.A. concluded with Prokura Niestandaryzowany
Sekurytyzacyjny Fundusz Inwestycyjny Zamkniety (Prokura Non-Standard Close-End
Securitization Fund) with its registered office in Wroctaw the agreement on the sale
of the portfolio, mainly of retail receivables recognised as impaired loans or written off the
balance sheet in full. The total amount of the receivables sold under the agreement equalled
PLN 253.4 million (principal, interest and other expenses as at the agreement conclusion date);
the receivables were fully covered with impairment losses or were written off the Bank balance
sheet in full. The final sale price of the portfolio was established at PLN 30.4 million. The positive
impact of the transaction on the Bank's risk costs was PLN 21 million. As a consequence
of the said agreement, the Bank decreased its non-performing loans portfolio
by PLN 139.4 million,

» On 14 May 2015, ING Bank Slgski S.A. concluded with Pragma 1 Fundusz Inwestycyjny Zamkniety
Niestandaryzowany Fundusz Sekurytyzacyjny (Non-Standard Closed-End Securitization
Investment Fund) managed and represented by Towarzystwo Funduszy Inwestycyjnych BDM
S.A., with its registered office in Bielsko-Biata, an agreement on the sale of the portfolio
of corporate receivables recognized as impaired loans or loans written off the balance sheet
in full. The total amount of receivables sold under the agreement equalled PLN 265.6 million
(principal and interest as at the agreement conclusion date); the receivables were fully covered
with impairment losses, or written off the Bank balance sheet in full. The contractual sale price
of the portfolio was established at PLN 9.2 million. The positive transaction impact on the Bank’s
risk costs was PLN 7.0 million.As a consequence of the agreement described, the Bank decreased
its non-performing loans portfolio by PLN 191.7 million.

12. Conclusion of a significant agreements

The criterion for regarding the agreement as significant is the total value of exposure towards
the entities of that Group which exceeds 10% of the Bank’s equity. None of the Counterparties
is related to ING Bank Slgski S.A.

Credit agreement with the Group of entities from the telecom and media services sector

On 21 September 2015, the Bank, together with a syndicate of other banks, entered into credit
agreements for the period of 5 years and totalling PLN 12.5 billion with members of the Group
of entities operating in the telecom and media services sector; the Bank’s total credit exposure
is PLN 1.0 billion. The loan granted by the Bank will be partly allocated for the refinancing

! Under the Communique from 265th session of the Polish Financial Supervision Authority published on PFSA’s website.
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of the client’s existing obligations thereto. The credit agreement in the amount of PLN 11.0 billion,
with the Bank’s exposure of PLN 871.2 million, is the largest in terms of value.

Credit agreement with a financial sector entity

On 31 July 2015, the Bank entered into a credit agreement with an entity from the financial sector,
up to the amount of EUR 30 million or the equivalent of PLN 124.5 million, for the period of up to 4
years. Total credit exposure of the Bank towards the Group of which that company is a member,
amounts to PLN 1,054.5 million. The credit agreement concluded by the Bank with another entity
of the same Group on 23 July 2015 in the amount of PLN 780.0 million is the largest in terms
of value.

Credit agreement with a retail trading company

On 27 March 2015, the Bank signed a credit agreement with a retail trading company for the total
amount of PLN 450,000,000. The Bank’s total exposure towards the Group of which that company
is a member, upon provision of the aforementioned loan, amounts to PLN 1,041,000,000. The value
of the agreement is the highest of all agreements concluded with the members of that Group over
the last 12 months.

13. Change of interest for ING Bank Slgski S.A.’s bonds

bonds series INGBS191219

On 19 June 2015, due to commencing new coupon period and setting a new WIBOR rate
for six-month deposits per the coupon period, the interest was changed for bonds series
INGBS191219 of the total nominal value of PLN 300,000,000.00, issued by the Bank
on 19 December 2014, under the Own Debt Securities Issuance Programme of ING Bank Slgski S.A. The
bonds interest for the subsequent coupon period was 2.53% per annum. The next coupon date fell on
19 December 2015. The remaining rights under the said bonds did not change.

On 19 December 2015, due to the opening of a new, third coupon period and setting of a new WIBOR
rate for six-month deposits per that coupon period, the interest on the aforementioned bonds
changed again. The bonds interest in the subsequent coupon period is 2.52% per annum. The next
coupon date falls on 19 June 2016. The remaining rights under the said bonds did not change.

bonds series INGBS061217

On 6 June 2015, due to commencing new, sixth coupon period and setting a new WIBOR rate
for six-month deposits per the coupon period, the interest was changed for bonds series
INGBS061217 of the total nominal value of PLN 565,000,000.00, issued by the Bank
on 6 December 2012, under the Own Debt Securities Issuance Programme of ING Bank Slqski S.A.
The bonds interest for the subsequent coupon period was 2.66% per annum. The next coupon date
fell on 6 December 2015. The remaining rights under the said bonds did not change.

On 6 December 2015, due to the opening of a new, seventh coupon period and setting of a new
WIBOR rate for six-month deposits per that coupon period, the interest on the aforementioned bonds
changed again. The bonds interest in the subsequent coupon period is 2.69% per annum. The next
coupon date falls on 6 June 2016. The remaining rights under the said bonds did not change.

14. Rating changes

Fitch Ratings Ltd. rating agency

On 19 May 2015, Fitch Ratings Ltd. downgraded the Long-Term Issuer Default Rating (Long-Term IDR)
for ING Bank Slgski S.A. from A to A-, and revised the outlook for that rating from “negative”
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to “stable”. The downgrade is the result of the same rating action taken towards ING Bank N.V. which
is the Bank’s main shareholder.

In line with its previous announcements, Fitch agency revised the ratings for banks in view
of the advanced implementation status of the new European regulations regarding banks'
functioning, including in particular Directive 2014/59/EU of the European Parliament
and of the Council establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions
and investment firms (Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive, or BRRD) and the Single Resolution
Mechanism (SRM). The agency believes the new regulations substantially reduce the likelihood
of sovereign support for the banks; as a result, the current ratings do not account for the potential
support from the sovereign.

The other ratings assigned by the agency are unaffected by the revision of the Long-Term IDR
and its outlook. The agency affirmed the Bank’s Short-Term IDR at F1 and the support rating at 1.
The individual Viability Rating at bbb+ was unaffected by the rating revision.

The Agency carried out the annual review of ratings at the turn of October and November.
As a result, all the ratings of the Bank were affirmed (Fitch agency press release of 23 November
2015).

Moody’s Investors Service rating agency

On 21 May 2015, Moody’s Investors Service upgraded the long-term deposit rating for ING Bank Slgski
S.A. to A3 from Baal and assigned it a stable outlook (revised from “review for possible upgrade”,
previously “negative”). The rating change was announced by Moody's on 17 March 2015 in the press
release where Moody's communicated that it had started to review the ratings of banks, ING Bank
Slgski S.A. included, following the new bank rating methodology announced a day earlier.
The ING Bank Slgski S.A. rating takes into account Poland’s supportive macroeconomic environment,
good financial standing reflected by capital ratios, portfolio quality, profitability and liquidity metrics,
as well as the Bank’s large volume of deposits which minimises loss given failure. Further, Moody's
assigned ING Bank Slgski S.A. the Counterparty Risk Assessment (or CR Assessment)
of A2 - long-term and of P-1 - short-term. Other ratings did not change.

The agency affirmed the ratings assigned to the Bank in May by publishing its Credit Opinion
on 26 November 2015.

15. General Meeting of ING Bank Slgski S.A.

On 31 March 2015, the General Meeting of ING Bank Slgski S.A. was held, during which the following
resolutions were passed:

» on approval of the 2014 annual financial statements (consolidated and separate financial
statements),

» on approval of the Management Board report on operations in 2014 (consolidated
and separate reports),

» on acknowledgement of the fulfilment of duties of the Management Board and Supervisory
Board Members for 2014,

» on distribution of profit for the year 2014,
» on dividend payout for the year 2014,
> on amendment to the Charter of ING Bank Slgski S.A.,

» changes to the Supervisory Board composition (changes were described in item
16. Changes to the Supervisory Board Composition) and changes to the remuneration
of the Supervisory Board Members.
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On 14 April 2015, the District Court in Katowice, Commercial Division of the National Court Register,
entered the amendments to the Bank Charter enacted at the General Meeting into the National
Court Register.

16. Changes to the Supervisory Board Composition

On 25 March 2015, Mr. Nicolaas Cornelis Jue tendered his resignation to the Chair of the Supervisory
Board of ING Bank Slgski S.A. as the Member of the Supervisory Board of ING Bank Slgski S.A., effective
as of 31 March 2015. Mr. Nicolaas Cornelis Jue resigned because he was entrusted with other duties
at ING Bank N.V.

On 31 March 2015, with the Resolution of the Ordinary General Meeting of ING Bank Slgski S.A.
Mr Diederik van Wassenaer was appointed the Member of the Supervisory Board of ING Bank
Slgski S.A.

17. Appointment of the Bank Management Board for the new term of office

On 31 March 2015, the Bank Supervisory Board appointed for the new term of office
the Management Board of ING Bank Slgski S.A. in the current composition:

» Ms. Matgorzata Kotakowska - President of the Bank Management Board,
» Mr. Mirostaw Boda - Vice-President of the Bank Management Board,

» Mr. Michat Bolestawski - Vice-President of the Bank Management Board,
» Ms. Joanna Erdman - Vice-President of the Bank Management Board,

» Mr. Ignacio Julia Vilar - Vice-President of the Bank Management Board,
» Ms. Justyna Kesler - Vice-President of the Bank Management Board,

> Mr. Oscar Swan - Vice-President of the Bank Management Board.

18. Changes to Bank Management Board Composition

On 18 June 2015, Mr. Oscar Edward Swan tendered his resignation to the Chair of the Supervisory
Board of ING Bank Slgski S.A. as the Vice-President of the Management Board of ING Bank Slgski S.A.
as of 30June2015. As of 01July2015, Mr. Oscar Edward Swan assumed the position
of the Vice-President of the Management Board in ING Lease (Polska) Sp.zo.0. belonging
to the ING Bank Slgski S.A. Group.

On 18 June 2015, the Supervisory Board appointed Mr. Patrick Roesink Vice-President of the Bank
Management Board in charge of the Credit and Market Risk Management Division as of 01 July 2015
(the Polish Financial Supervision Authority at its meeting held on 26 May 2015 consented
to appointment of Mr. Patrick Roesink to the position of the Member of the ING Bank Slgski S.A.
Management Board).

19. Decision of the Swiss National Bank to remove the CHF rate peg

In January 2015, the Swiss National Bank resolved to remove the CHF/EUR exchange peg.
This decision translated into an unprecedented strengthening of Swiss franc versus other currencies,
PLN included. Also, the Swiss National Bank decided to cut interest rates.

The Bank has a CHF mortgage portfolio which as at the end of December 2015 was CHF 333 million,
or represented approx. 2% of the total lending portfolio and approx. 1% of the CHF mortgage market.
The systemic solutions for FX risk associated with CHF-denominated portfolios proposed by various
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state and supervisory bodies may cause the Bank to incur losses in future periods.

20. Selection of entity authorised to audit financial statements

On 27 November 2015, the Bank Supervisory Board selected KPMG Audyt Spoétka z ograniczong
odpowiedzialnoscig Sp.k. with its registered office in Warsaw as the entity authorised to audit
the financial statements of ING Bank Slgski S.A. and the ING Bank Slgski S.A. Group for the period
of 2016-2017.

lll. Statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards

These annual financial statements for the period from 01 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 were
prepared in compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") approved
by the European Union. The financial statements take into account the requirements
of the standards and interpretations approved by the EU except for the standards
and interpretations mentioned in item 1 below, which either await approval by the EU or have been
already approved by the EU but shall take effect after the balance sheet date.

1. Changes to accounting standards

In these annual financial statements the Bank took account of the following binding standards
and interpretations approved by the European Union for annual periods starting on or after
01 January 2015:

Change
(EU effective date provided for in the parentheses)

IAS 19
“Defined Benefits Plans: Employee Contributions”
(the accounting year starting on 01 February 2015 or later)

Influence on the Bank statements

Implementation of the standard did not have a material
impact on the financial statements of the Bank.

IFRIC 21
“Levies”
(the accounting year starting on 17 June 2014 or later)

Implementation did not have a material impact on the annual
financial statements of the Bank.

Changes arising from the IFRS review made during the 2010-

2012 cycle. Implementation does not have a material impact
Concerning: IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 13, IAS 16, IAS 24, and P . P
IAS 38 on the financial statements of the Bank.

(the accounting year starting on 01 February 2015 or later)

Changes arising from the IFRS review made during the 2011-

2013 cycle. Implementation does not have a material impact
Concerning: IFRS 1, IFRS 3, IFRS 13, and IAS 40. on the financial statements of the Bank.

(the accounting year starting on 01 2015 January or later)
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The published standards and

interpretations which were already

issued and approved

by the European Union as at 31 December 2015 but were not previously applied by the Bank:

Change
(EU effective date provided for in the parentheses)

IAS 1
JDisclosure Initiative”
(the accounting year starting on 01 January 2016 or later)

IAS 16 and IAS 38

»Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation”

(the accounting year starting on 01 January 2016 or later)

IAS 27
~Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements”
(the accounting year starting on 01 January 2016 or later)

IAS 16 and IAS 41
+Agriculture - Bearer Plants”
(the accounting year starting on 01 January 2016 or later)

IFRS 11
+Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations”
(the accounting year starting on 01 January 2016 or later)

Changes arising from IFRS reviews made during the 2012-2014
cycle (published in September 2014). Apply to IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS
19 and IAS 34.

(the accounting year starting on 1 January 2016 or later)

Influence on the Bank statements

Implementation of the change will have no material impact
on the financial statements of the Bank.

The published amendments to the standards will not have
impact on the financial statements of the Bank - the Bank does
not apply the revenue-based methods of depreciation and
amortization.

The analyses show that the application of the standard change
will have no material impact on the financial statements
of the Bank.

Not applicable.

The analyses show that revised standard application
will have no material impact on the financial statements
of the Bank.

Implementation will not have a material impact on the
financial statements of the Bank.

The published standards and interpretations which were already issued but were not approved
by the European Union as at 31 December 2015 and were not previously applied by the Bank:

Change

(expected IASB effective date provided for in the parentheses)

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28
JInvestment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception”
(the accounting year starting on 01 January 2016 or later)

IFRS 9
,Financial Instruments”
(the accounting year starting on 01 January 2018 or later)

IFRS 10 and IAS 28

,Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture”

(the accounting year starting on 01 January 2016 or later)
EU approval was postponed for an indefinite period.

IFRS 14

»Regulatory Deferral Accounts”

(the accounting year starting on 01 January 2016 or later)
EU resolved to wait for the final standard version.

IFRS 15
»Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(the accounting year starting on 01 January 2018 or later)

Influence on the Bank statements

Revised standard application will have no impact
on the financial statements of the Bank.

The new standard is expected to have a material impact

on the financial statements upon its first-time adoption

due to the requirement of its retrospective application.

The Bank is working on implementation of the requirements
of the new standard as part of the dedicated project.

Given the project works performed, the Bank did not decide to
apply the standard earlier.

The analyses show that the application of the standard
change will have no material impact on the financial
statements of the Bank.

Not applicable (the new standard applies only to entities that
are IFRS first-time adopters).

The analyses show that standard application will have
no material impact on the financial statements of the Bank.
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2. Going-concern

These annual financial statements were prepared on a going-concern basis as regards
the foreseeable future, namely as regards the period of minimum 12 months from the balance sheet
date. As at the approval date hereof, the Bank Management Board have not identified any events
that could pose threat to ING Bank Slgski S.A. continuing their operations.

3. Discontinued operations

No operations were discontinued during 2015 and 2014.

4. Financial statements scope and currency

The Bank is the dominant entity of the ING Bank Slgski S.A. Group and besides these financial
statements they also produce the consolidated financial statements compliant with IFRS.

These annual financial statements have been developed in Polish Zloty (“PLN"). Unless provided for
otherwise, all values were given rounded up to PLN million. Therefore, some totals and individual
notes can be inconsistent in mathematical terms.

5. Reporting period and comparable data

These annual financial statements of the ING Bank Slgski S.A. cover the period from 01 January 2015
to 31 December 2015 and include the comparative data:

» items from the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014,

» items in the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity and cash flow statement for the period from 01 January 2014 to 31 December
2014,

IV. Significant accounting principles

1. Basis for preparation of financial statements

The concept of fair value has been applied in the statements for own real property
and investment property as well as financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value, including
derivative instruments, and financial assets classified as available-for-sale, excluding those for which
the fair value cannot be determined in a reliable manner. Other items of financial assets (including
loans and receivables) are presented at amortized cost less impairment or at purchase price less
impairment. Non-current assets held for sale are recognised at the lower of their carrying amount
and the fair value less sales costs.

2. Professional judgement

In the process of accounting principles application to the matters discussed hereinbelow, besides
the booking estimates professional judgment of the management staff was of key significance.

2.1. Deferred tax assets

The Bank recognises deferred tax assets, provided that it is probable that tax profit will be earned
in future periods allowing their utilisation. The assumption would prove unjustified should tax results
deteriorate in the future.
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For details of deferred tax assets, see the note.

2.2. Classification of leases

Leases are classified by the Bank as operating or financial leases based on the extent whereto
the risk and benefits due to holding of leased asset are attributable to lessor and lessee.
The substance of each transaction is used to make the said assessment.

For details of leases, see the notes.

2.3. Classification of financial assets as financial assets held to maturity

The Bank classifies debt securities as assets held to maturity when they can be held until maturity.
For details of the debt securities classified as financial assets held to maturity, see the notes.

2.4. Classification of real properties as investment properties

The Bank classifies real properties as investment properties on the assumption that the part used
to provide services and perform administrative tasks is immaterial.

For details, see the note.

3. Accounting estimates

The development of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires from the Bank
the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and notes thereto.

Estimations and assumptions applied to the presentation of amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and costs are made on the basis of historical data available and other factors considered
to be relevant in given circumstances. The assumptions applied for the future and available data
sources are the base for making estimations regarding the carrying amount of assets and liabilities,
which cannot be determined explicitly on the basis of other sources. The estimates reflect
the reasons for/ sources of uncertainties as at the balance sheet date. The actual results may differ
from estimates.

The estimations and assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Adjustments to estimates
are recognized in the period when the estimation was changed provided that the adjustment applies
to this period alone or in the period when the estimation was changed and in the following periods,
should the adjustment impact both the current and future periods.

Below are the most significant booking estimates made by the Bank.

3.1. Impairment

The Bank assesses whether there is objective evidence of impairment of financial assets (individual
items or groups) and non-current assets as at balance sheet date.

3.1.1. Impairment of financial assets

Objective evidence of impairment of financial assets stems from occurrence of one or more events
which have a direct impact on valuation of future asset-related cash flows.

The estimates can take into account observable data indicating occurrence of unfavourable payment
situation on the part of borrowers from a certain group or unfavourable economic situation of a given
country or its part, which translates into the problems sustained by this group of assets.
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For significant assets classified to the ISFA portfolio (Individually Significant Financial Assets),
impairment is calculated as a difference between the present value of acredit exposure
and expected discounted future cash flows for a given exposure.

For assets from IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) and INSFA (Individually Non-Significant Financial
Assets) portfolios, current exposure is computed with the use of PD, EAD and LIP parameters.

Detailed informations as to credit risk estimation models used by the Bank are presented further
in this report, see Chapter: Risk Management at ING Bank Slgski S.A., item | discussing credit risk
management.

To determine impairment (or reverse it), the present value of expected future cash flows has
to be calculated. The methodology and assumptions used to estimate both the amount and the time
of future cash flows are reqgularly reviewed and adjusted as needed.

Some examples of impairment triggers for financial assets, methodology of impairment computation
and the recording rules applied thereto were described in item Impairment (item 6.11 of this chapter).

The table below shows the estimated impact of the change to the present value of expected future
cash flows in the ISFA portfolio on the change to loan loss provisions and provisions for off-balance
sheet liabilities.

2015

Scenario (FCF change)

-10% +10%
Estimated LLP change [PLN] (52.31) 50.50
Estimated LLP change [%] (6.94%) 7.76%

3.1.2. Impairment of other non-current assets

For non-current assets, valuation is based on estimating the recoverable amount of non-current
assets being the higher of their value in use and net realisable value at the review date. The value
in use of an item of non-current assets (or a cash-generating unit when the recoverable amount
of an assets item forming joint assets cannot be determined) is estimated, among others, through
adoption of estimation assumptions for amounts, times of future cash flows which the Bank may
generate from a given assets item (or a cash-generating unit) and other factors. To determine
the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at pre-tax
discount rate, which reflects the current market expectations as regards value of money
and the specific risk of a given assets item.

When estimating the fair value less costs of sale, the Bank makes use of relevant market data
available or valuations made by independent appraisers which are based on estimates by and large.

The relevant recording rules were delineated in item 8.4. Impairment of other non-financial assets.

The table below shows discount rate sensitivity of the impairment test for the cash-generating units.

Discount rate change

(PLN million) 31.12.2015
-1p.p. +1p.p.

Surplus of cash flows net value over the net book
value.

3051.8 4 089.5 2351.2
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3.2. Credit risk of derivative instruments

The approach employed by the Bank to estimate credit risk for derivatives with future settlement
date (active deals unsettled as at the balance sheet date) is consistent with its approach to assessing
credit risk for credit receivables.

For details of fair value measurement of derivative instruments considering credit risk,
see item 6.8. Derivative instruments and hedge accounting.

3.3. Measurement of financial instruments that do not have a quoted market price

The fair value of financial instruments not quoted in active markets is measured using valuation
models. For non-option derivatives, the models based on discounted cash flows apply.
Options are measured using appropriate option valuation models.

Valuation models used by the Bank are verified prior to their usage. Where possible, in models
the Bank uses observable data from active markets. However, in certain circumstances, to choose
the right valuation parameter, the Bank makes an estimation by comparing a given instrument
to another one present in another market but having similar or identical features. Application
of the prudence principle requiring to choose the lower value of assets and the higher value
of liabilities as being more probable - especially in the conditions of lower liquidity or/and volatility
of the financial markets - is fundamental in the valuation made under this approach.
Change of assumptions concerning these factors may impact on valuation of some financial
instruments.

Specifically in 2015, the Bank measured at fair value the Bank’s share in Visa Europe Limited (Visa
Europe) that is not quoted in the active market. The share was measured using the proposed
allocation of settlement of the Visa Europe takeover by Visa Inc. transaction. The Bank was advised
thereof in the course of confirmation of terms and conditions of the takeover transaction as one
of transaction beneficiaries. For details, see Chapter Il. Significant events in 2015.

3.4. Retirement and pension benefit provision

The Bank establishes the provisions for retirement and pension benefit in accordance with IAS 19.
The provision for retirement and pension benefit pay awarded as part of the benefits under
the Labour Code requlations is calculated using the actuarial method by an independent actuary
as the present value of the future long-term Bank’s obligations towards their employees considering
the headcount and payroll status as at the update date.

The provisions are calculated based on a range of assumptions, relating to both discount rates
and projected salary raises as well as to staff rotation, death risk and others. The assumptions
are verified at the end of the accounting year.

The table below shows model sensitivity to the values adopted for individual assumptions.

(PLN million) Base variant change
Base variant 0
Discount rate +1.00% 2.479
Discount rate -1.00% -3.040
Salary raise +0.25% -0.714
Salary raise -0.25% 0.682
Death ratio +1 year 0.210
Death ratio -1 year -0.201
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3.5. Valuation of incentive schemes
3.5.1. Valuation of variable remuneration programme benefits

As at the balance sheet date, the Bank presents in the books the estimated present value
of benefits to be rendered under the variable remuneration programme. Benefits will be granted
to employees covered with the programme, based on their performance appraisal for a given year.
The programme was launched in 2012.

Benefits granted as phantom stock are valued with the use of the median of closing prices of Bank’s
shares on the Warsaw Stock Exchange during a certain period.

The fair value of the deferred benefit element is adjusted with the reduction factor which accounts
for probability of occurrence of an event requiring adjustment of the value of the granted benefit
which the employee is not fully eligible to as at the balance sheet date. The catalogue of events has
been defined in the programme assumptions.

The present value of the said benefits is determined at market discount rate.

3.5.2. Valuation of options granted under ING Group incentive system benefits

The fair value of the options granted under the ING Group incentive scheme was measured with
the Monte Carlo simulation. The model takes the risk-free interest (from 2.02% to 4.62%) as well as
the expected exercise date for the options granted (from 5 to 9 years), the option exercise price,
the present option price (EUR 2.9 - EUR 26.05), the expected volatility of ING Group's share
certificates (25% - 84%) and the expected dividend yield (from 0.94% to 8.99%).

The ING's incentive scheme determines the volatility used to price stock options, which is defined
by the volatility of market data and not the historical volatility.

3.6. Residual value of leased assets

The expected residual value is usually the agreed future price of non-current asset purchase
by the client after the end of the leasing term. The value is calculated as at the leasing
commencement, based on the non-current asset initial value. The residual values are usually
established based on certain contractual amount and recognized in net leasing investment position.
Recovery of non-current asset residual value in leasing operations depends on the fulfilment of terms
and conditions of leasing contract and completion thereof.

4. Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies

Investments in subsidiaries and associated companies are measured at purchase price less
impairment.

4.1. Legal consolidation of subsidiaries

When settling the transactions of consolidating the Bank with their subsidiary (subject to joint
control), the Bank applies the approach consistent with the terms and conditions of the approach
whereunder shares are consolidated under the Accounting Act of 29 September 1994, following
implementation of IAS 8 guidelines.

Under this approach, individual items of relevant assets and liabilities of the consolidated subsidiary
are included in the separate financial statements of the Bank in the amounts recognized
in the consolidated financial statements of the dominant entity as at the consolidation date.
The consolidation does not affect the comparable data; thus the data do not require any change.
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4.2. Assumption of control over an entity subject to joint control under IFRS 3

The Bank applies the method discussed in item 4.1. hereinabove also to recognise
the fact of control assumption over the entity subject to joint control under IFRS 3 in the consolidated
financial statements.

The Bank adopted the approach whereunder comparable data are not adjusted when control
is assumed over an entity subject to joint control under IFRS 3.

4.3.  Assumption of control over an entity other than the ING Group member

The takeover approach is applied when settling the purchase of entities from non-associated parties.
At the takeover date, the Bank recognizes, separately from goodwill, purchased identifiable assets
and taken over identifiable liabilities, taking into account recognition criteria and all non-controlling
interests in the taken over entity.

5. Foreign currency

5.1. Functional currency and presentation currency

The items given in presentations of the Bank are priced in the currency of the basic economic
environment in which a given entity operates (“the functional currency”). These financial statements
are presented in Polish Zloty, which is the functional currency and the presentation currency of the
Bank.

5.2. Transactions in foreign currency

Transactions expressed in foreign currencies are translated at FX rate prevailing at the transaction
date. The financial assets and liabilities, being result of the said transactions and denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the FX rate prevailing on a given day. The foreign exchange
differences resulting from the settlements of the said transactions and the balance sheet valuation
of the financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are recognized in the income
statement under the specific item FX result, which is an element of Net income on instruments
at fair value through profit or loss and FX result.

Foreign exchange differences under changes to the fair value of financial instruments classified
as available-for-sale financial assets are recognized in the revaluation reserve for the financial assets
assigned to this financial category.

6. Financial assets and liabilities

6.1. Classification

The Bank classifies financial instruments to the following categories: financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, investments held to maturity
and available-for-sale financial assets.

6.1.1. Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

These are financial assets or financial liabilities that meet either of the following conditions:

» are classified as held for trading. A financial assets item or financial liability is classified
as held for trading if it is: acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing it in the near term or is a part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
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of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading (other than
those that are designated and effective hedging instruments),

» upon initial recognition they are classified by the Bank as carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Such classification can be made only if:

— the classified financial assets item or financial liability is a hybrid instrument containing
one or many embedded derivatives, which qualify for separate recognition
and embedded derivatives cannot change significantly the cash flows resulting from the
host contract or separation of embedded derivative is forbidden;

— usage of such classification of financial asset or liability eliminates or decreases
significantly the inconsistency of measurement or recognition (the so called booking
mismatch due to various methods of assets and liabilities valuation or various recognition
of gains and losses attributable to them);

— the group of financial assets and liabilities or both categories is managed properly,
and its results are measured using fair value, in accordance with documented risk
management principles or the Bank’s investment strategy.

6.1.2. Investment held to maturity

Those are the financial assets other than derivatives with payments specified or possible to specify
and with the maturity date specified, other than those defined as loans or receivables, which
the Bank intends to and is able to hold by the maturity date. In case of sale or reclassification
of more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments in relation to the total held
to maturity investments before maturity all the assets of this category are reclassified
to the available for sale category. In such a case, the Bank must not classify any financial assets
as investments held to maturity for 2 years.

The above mentioned sanction is not applied:

» if sale was so close to maturity (for example, less than three months before maturity) that
changes in the market rate of interest would not have a significant effect on the asset’s fair
value,

» if the entity has collected substantially all of the financial asset's original principal through
scheduled payments or prepayments, or

» for an isolated event that is beyond the entity'’s control, is non-recurring and could not have
been reasonably anticipated by the entity.

6.1.3. Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market, other than:

» those that the entity intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which
are classified as held for trading, and those that the entity upon initial recognition carries
at fair value through profit or loss;

» those that the entity upon initial recognition classifies as available for sale;

» those for which the holder may not recover substantially all of its initial investment, other
than because of credit service deterioration, which are classified as available for sale.

Loans and receivables include credit facilities and cash loans granted to other banks and clients
including repurchased debt claims, debt securities reclassified from the portfolio of financial assets
available for sale and debt securities not listed in the active market, that satisfy the definition
of loans and receivables.
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6.1.4. Financial assets available for sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated
as available for sale or are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments
or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

6.1.5. Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities being a contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial asset
to another entity not carried at fair value through profit or loss, being a deposit or loan received.

6.1.6. Financial guarantees

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

6.2. Recognition

The Bank incorporates financial assets or liabilities into the balance sheet when, and only when
it becomes a party to the instrument-related contract. Purchase and sale transactions of financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss, held to maturity and available for sale
are recognized, in accordance with accounting policies applied to all transactions of a certain type,
at the settlement date, the date on which the asset is delivered to an entity or by an entity.
Loans and receivables are recognized on distribution of the cash to borrower.

6.3.  Derecognition

The Bank derecognizes a financial asset when, and only when: the contractual rights
to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the Bank transfers the contractual right
to receipt of the cash flow from the financial asset.

On transferring the financial asset, the Bank assesses their risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset. Accordingly, where the Bank:

» transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
it derecognizes the financial asset,

» retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
it continues to recognize the financial asset,

» neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, it the Bank determines whether it has retained control of the financial
asset. In this case if the Bank has retained control, it continues to recognize
the financial asset, and if the Bank has not retained control, it derecognizes
the financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset.

The Bank removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its balance sheet when,
and only when the obligation specified in the contract is satisfied or cancelled or expires.

The Bank derecognizes loans and receivables or their part, if the rights pertaining to the loan
agreement expire, the Bank waives such rights, sells the loan or when as a result of modification
of the terms and conditions of the loan or cash loan agreement the current value of future cash
flows of the primary exposure and the post-modification exposure differs by more than 10%.

The Bank most frequently writes down receivables as impairment loss when irrevocability of financial
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assets is declared, and also when repayment claim costs exceed the amount of the receivable.

The amounts of receivables written down as loss and recovered thereafter reduce the impairment
loss in the income statement.

6.4. Measurement

When a financial asset or financial liability is recognized initially, it is measured at its fair value plus,
in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not carried at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset
or financial liability.

After initial recognition, the Bank measures financial assets, including derivatives that are assets,
at their fair values, except for the following financial assets:

» loans and receivables which are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method,

» held-to-maturity investments which are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method,

» investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and their fair value cannot be reliably measured,
and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, which are measured at cost.

After initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, except for:

» financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities, including
derivatives that are liabilities, are measured at fair value except for a derivative liability that
is linked to and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument which fair
value cannot be reliably measured and which is measured at cost,

» financial liabilities resulting from the transfer of a financial asset which does not qualify
for being excluded from the balance sheet or recognized on a continuing involvement basis.

The other financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost or the amount of due payment.
Granted financial guarantees are measured at the higher of:

» the amount being the most appropriate estimation of the expenditures needed
to fulfil the current obligation arising from the financial guarantee, considering
the probability of materialisation thereof;

» the amount recognized at the initial entry, adjusted with the settled amount of received
guarantee commission.

6.5. Reclassification

A particular financial asset classified as available for sale may be reclassified should it satisfy
the definition of loans and receivables and should the Bank intend and be able to maintain this
financial asset in the foreseeable future or until its maturity. The fair value of the financial asset
at the reclassification date is deemed as its new cost or new amortised cost, respectively.

In the event of a maturing financial asset, the profits or losses recognized as equity until
the date of reclassification are amortised and carried through profit or loss for the remaining term
until maturity. All differences between the new amortised cost and the amortisation amount
are amortised for the remaining term until the instrument’s maturity, similarly to the amortisation
of premium or discount. Amortisation is made using the effective interest rate method.
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6.6.  Gains and losses resulting from subsequent measurement

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability that is not
part of a hedging relationship is recognized, as follows:

» again or loss on a financial asset or financial liability classified as at fair value through profit
or loss is recognized in the income statement;

» again or loss on an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized directly in equity through
the statement of changes in equity.

The interest calculated using the effective interest rate method is recognized in the income
statement.

As of impairment of items of financial assets or a group of financial assets, the Bank carries
the amount of contractual interest not paid at the impairment date through profit or loss. Since then,
the Bank accrues interest on the items of financial assets or a group of financial assets less
impairment. Interest is accrued at the interest rate used to calculate impairment for the financial
assets affected. Later, the value is adjusted for the contractual interest paid in a given period.

Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised in the income statement when
the entity's right to receive payment is established.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from a change in the fair value of a non-monetary
financial assets item available for sale denominated in foreign currency are recognized directly
in equity. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary financial assets
(e.g. debt securities) denominated in foreign currency are recognized directly in the income
statement.

At the moment of derecognition of financial assets from the balance sheet, cumulated gains
and losses recognized previously in equity, are transferred to the income statement.
If any objective evidence exists that an available-for-sale financial assets item is impaired, the Bank
recognises impairment as described in item 6.11.2 concerning determination of impairment
of available-for-sale financial assets.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active market (including securities)
is determined using the bid price for long position and offer price for short position. Valuation
techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, willing
parties, if available, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models and other techniques
used by market members. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined with the use
of the prudent valuation approach and is based on the guidelines given in the technical standards
of the European Banking Authority (EBA - Article 105(14) of the Reqgulation EU 575/2013 published
in March 2014). This approach aims at determining the fair value with a high, 90%, confidence level,
considering uncertain market pricing and closing cost.

Market activity is assessed on the basis of frequency and the volume of effected transactions as well
as access to information about quoted prices which by and large should be delivered on a continuous
basis.

The main market and the most beneficial one at the same time is the market the Bank can access
and on which in normal conditions it would enter into sale/purchase transactions for the item
of assets or transfer of a liability.

Based on the employed fair value methods, financial assets/liabilities are classified as:

» Level I: financial assets/liabilities measured directly on the basis of prices quoted
in the active market,

» Level II: financial assets/liabilities measured using the measurement techniques based
on assumptions using data from an active market or market observations,
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» Level lll: financial assets/liabilities measured using the measurement techniques commonly
used by the market players, the assumptions of which are not based on data from an active
market.

The Bank verifies on a monthly basis whether any changes occurred to the quality of the input data
used in individual measurement techniques and determines the reasons and their impact on the fair
value calculation for the component of financial assets/liabilities. Each identified case is reviewed
individually. Following detailed analyses, the Bank takes a decision whether its identification entails
any changes to the approach for fair value measurement or not.

In justified circumstances, the Bank decides to modify the fair value methodologies and their
effective date construed as the circumstances change date. Then, they assess the impact of changes
on the classification to the individual categories of the fair value measurement hierarchy.
Any amendments to the measurement methodology and its rationale are subject to detailed
disclosures in a separate note to the financial statements.

6.7.  Valuation cost basis of debt and capital securities

Estimation of fair value of and result on sale of securities requires application of a certain cost basis
for investment. The cost basis for investment applied in that respect is based on the interpretation
resulting in application by an analogy to the guidelines given in IAS 2 Inventories, however only
as far as possible considering the unique nature of the financial instruments of this type.

The Bank applies the “weighted average purchase price” as the effective cost basis for investment
to estimate fair value of and result on sale of securities with the capital rights.

The Bank applies the “first-in first-out” (FIFO) method as the cost basis of investment for debt
securities.

6.8. Derivative instruments and hedge accounting

Derivative instruments are measured at fair value without transactional costs, which
are to be incurred at the moment of its sale. The base of initial fair value measurement of derivative
instruments is value at cost, i.e. fair value of received or paid amount.

The credit risk component is included in the fair value measurement for derivative instruments
through additional valuation adjustments. Valuation adjustments are estimated per counterparty
considering the expected presettlement exposures and the same risk incurred by the Bank.
This approach provides for the possibility of occurrence of risk of bilateral value adjustments.
The adjustment is made using the expected positive exposure estimated through numerous
simulations (the results from the scenarios leading to a negative outcome are eliminated)
and the present market value (or its estimation through referencing to comparable data) of credit
default swaps (CDS). Own risk of the Bank and the risk of materialisation of a scenario of concurrent
client and Bank insolvency are calculated by analogy.

In addition for matured or terminated and unsettled transactions as at the balance sheet date,
the Bank establishes impairment losses using the methodology applied to assessing the risk
of impaired loans.

The two types of fair value adjustments as mentioned above were differently reflected
in the financial statements. Fair value adjustments due to risk for non-matured transactions were
presented under the item Net income on instruments at fair value through profit
or loss and FX result, whereas the impairments losses for matured transactions under the item
Impairment losses for financial assets and provisions for off-balance-sheet liabilities.

If a transaction whose fair value was adjusted in the previous reporting period under the item
Net income on instruments at fair value through profit or loss and FX result becomes mature or subject
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to restructuring, then the amount of the previous fair value adjustment is moved to the item
Impairment losses and the added part of the impairment loss for such already matured transaction
is presented in the income statement in the item Impairment losses for financial assets and provisions
for off-balance-sheet liabilities.

Therefore the financial result is impacted only by the amount of surplus of the current impairment
loss (or write-down) for a mature transaction above the amount of the fair value adjustment made
before the transaction has matured.

The Bank separates and recognizes in the statement of financial position derivative instruments that
are a component of hybrid instruments. A hybrid (combined) instrument includes
a non-derivative host contract and derivative instrument, which causes some or all of the cash flows
arising from the host contract to be modified considering a specified interest rate, financial
instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating
or credit index, or other variable.

The Bank separates embedded derivatives from the host contract and accounts
for them as a derivative if, and only if the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
derivative are not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract,
and the host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. An embedded derivative
is measured at fair value, and its changes are recognized in the income statement.

The Bank uses derivative instruments to hedge against FX and interest rate risk, inherent in their
operations. Those derivatives which were not designated as hedge instruments under the hedge
accounting principles are classified as trading instruments and carried at fair value.

6.8.1. Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting presents the offset effects of fair value changes of both hedging instruments
and hedged items which impact the income statement.

The Bank defines certain derivatives for hedging fair value or cash flows. The Bank uses hedge
accounting, if the following conditions are met:

» formalised documentation of the hedging relationship was prepared when
the hedging was established. The documentation sets out the purpose of risk management
and the hedging strategy adopted by the Bank. In the documentation, the Bank designates
the hedging instrument to hedge a given position or transaction, and specifies the type
of risk to be hedged against. The Bank specifies the manner for assessing the effectiveness of
the hedging instrument in compensating for changes in cash flows due to the hedged
transaction in terms of mitigation of risk the Bank hedges against,

» the hedging instrument and hedged instrument are similar, especially in terms of nominal
value, maturity date and volatility to interest rate and foreign exchange changes,

» the hedge is expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value
or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk, consistently with the originally documented risk
management strategy for that particular hedging relationship,

» for cash flow hedges, a forecast transaction that is the subject of the hedge must be highly
probable and must present an exposure to variations in cash flows that could ultimately
affect profit or loss,

» the effectiveness of the hedge may be assessed credibly, so the fair value of the hedged item
or the cash flows of the said item as well as fair value of a hedge instrument may be valued
credibly,

» the hedge is assessed on an ongoing basis and determined actually to have been highly
effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which the hedge was designated.
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Eair value hedge

Fair value hedge: a hedge of the exposure against changes in fair value of a recognised asset
or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of such an asset, liability
or firm commitment, that is attributable to a particular risk and could affect the income statement.

A fair value hedge is accounted for as follows: the gain or loss from re-measuring the hedging
instrument at fair value (i.e. for a derivative hedging instrument) is recognized in the income
statement; the gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk adjusts the carrying
amount of the hedged item and is recognised in the income statement. In view of the above, any
ineffectiveness of the strategy (i.e. lack of full compensation for changes to the fair value
of the hedged item and changes to the fair value of the hedged instrument) is immediately disclosed
in the income statement.

If a hedged item is a component of financial assets available for sale, the profit or loss resulting from
the hedged risk is recognized in the income statement, and the profit or loss resulting from
non-hedged risk is recognized in equity.

The Bank applies the fair value hedge accounting to hedge against changes in fair value
of fixed-rate debt instruments classified to the portfolio of available-for-sale assets and fixed-rate
debt instruments classified to the portfolio of loans and receivables before the risk resulting
from interest rate changes.

Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedge: exposure hedge against volatility in cash flows that:

» is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized assets item or liability
(such as all or some future interest payments on variable rate debt) or a highly probable
forecast transaction,

» could affect the income statement.

A cash flow hedge is accounted for as follows: the changes of the fair value of the hedge instrument,
which are an effective part of hedging relationship, are recognised directly in equity through
the statement of comprehensive income, while the ineffective portion of the gain or loss
on the hedging instrument is recognised in the income statement.

The associated gains or losses that were recognised directly in equity (effective hedge),
at the moment of recognition of a financial asset and liability being a result of planned future
transaction, are transferred to the income statement in the same period or periods during which
the asset acquired or liability assumed affects the income statement.

The Bank applies cash flow hedge accounting to hedge the amount of future cash flows of certain
portfolios of assets/liabilities of the Bank or the portfolio of highly probable planned transactions
against the interest rate risk and the highly probable planned transaction against the FX risk.

Further, the Bank applies the hedging strategy to hedge against the FX risk and base risk being
the consequence of funding the CHF- or EUR-indexed mortgage portfolio with PLN liabilities using FX
interest rate swaps; i.e. Currency Interest Rate Swap (CIRS).

With one economic link between the concluded CIRS transactions and the extended CHF or EUR loans
as well as PLN deposits used to fund them, the sets two hedge links for cash flow hedge accounting
purposes. The foregoing is made by separating the real CIRS transaction part hedging the portfolio
of CHF or EUR-indexed loans against FX risk and interest rate risk and the real CIRS transaction part
hedging PLN liabilities against interest rate risk.

6.8.2. Derivative instruments not qualifying as hedging instruments

Changes in fair value of derivatives that do not fulfil the criteria of hedge accounting are disclosed
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in the income statement for the current period. Changes in fair value of IR-derivatives arising from
ongoing accrual of interest coupon are disclosed under Interest result on derivatives, whereas
the remaining part of changes in the fair value of IR-derivatives are presented under Net income
on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and FX result.

Changes in the fair value of FX-derivatives are decomposed into three elements, which are presented
as follows:

» changes in fair value arising from ongoing accrual of swap/forward points are presented
under Interest result on derivatives,

» changes in fair value due to changes of foreign exchange rates are presented under
Net income on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and FX result,

» the remaining part of change in fair value (i.e. due to the change of interest rates)
is presented under Net income on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
and FX result.

6.9. Offsetting financial instruments

The Bank offsets financial assets and financial liabilities and reports them in the net amount
in the statement of financial position when and only when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In order to mitigate credit risk, the Bank concludes special master agreements with counterparties,
with which the Bank concludes transactions. These special master agreements provide for offsetting
financial assets and liabilities in case of a breach of the master agreement.

6.10. Repo/reverse repo transactions

The Bank presents sold financial assets with the repurchase clauses (repo, sell-buy-back
transactions) in their statement of financial position, simultaneously recognizing a financial liability
under a repurchase clause. This is done in order to reflect the risks and benefits arising on this assets
item that are retained by the Bank after the transfer.

For the securities purchased with a repurchase clause (reverse repo, buy-sell-back), the financial
assets held are presented as receivables arising from repurchase clause, hedged with securities.

Transactions are measured in line with their intention. Accordingly, the transactions made
for the category of financial instruments held for trading are carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Other transactions are recognised at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

6.11. Impairment
6.11.1. Assets valued at amortized cost

At each balance sheet date, the Bank assesses whether there is any evidence that a financial assets
item or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset item or a group of financial assets
is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset item (a ‘loss
event’) and that loss event (or events) has (have) an impact on the expected future cash flows
of the financial asset item or a group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Losses expected as a result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised.

The evidence of impairment is:

» identification of an objective impairment evidence (for corporate and retail credit exposures)
or
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»

the analysis (test) result showing impairment (in the case of corporate credit exposure).

Objective impairment evidence of the corporate or retail credit exposure covers the occurrence
of at least one of the following situations:

4

4

the client has discontinued to repay the principal, pay interest or commissions,
with the delay of +90 DPD, provided that the amount of arrears is higher than the materiality
threshold defined for a given client segment or product,

another forbearance has occurred or there is a delay of +30 DPD for corporate and credit
exposure with the forbearance status,

a petition for bankruptcy with liquidation or conciliation bankruptcy has been filed
or rehabilitation proceedings have been started by the Bank, a client or by another bank.
For retail credit exposures, it applies only where it is the Bank that files the petition
for the client bankruptcy,

bankruptcy with liquidation is declared, conciliation bankruptcy or rehabilitation proceedings
towards the client are approved - if they assume lack of full repayment towards the Bank,

the credit exposure becomes due and payable as a consequence of the Bank’s having
terminated the loan agreement,

the Bank cancels or writes off a significant amount of the client receivables, which leads
to reduction in cash flows from a given financial assets item,

the Bank initiates the debt enforcement proceedings,
the client questions the balance sheet credit exposure in court,

the client's whereabouts are unknown so the client is not represented in contacts
with the Bank and the client assets are not disclosed,

serious financial problems of the client, including but not limited to:

— for corporate credit exposure, the Bank has assessed with high probability (above 50%)
that the client situation will preclude full repayment of the debt within the impairment
analysis (test),

—  for retail credit exposure:

e poor financial standing reflected in the worst risk rating of the client (applies
to clients from the Entrepreneurs segment),

e restructuring of the retail credit exposure,

e impairment on other accounts - within the product segment the client has other
credit exposures where impairment evidence has been identified,

for retail credit exposures - justified suspicion of fraudulent obtainment of a loan.

For retail credit exposures, the objective impairment evidence applies if the materiality threshold
of PLN 500 is exceeded. As regards corporate credit exposures without risk rating, the materiality
threshold for overdraft facilities with +90 DPD amounts to PLN 1,000. For the remaining corporate
credit exposures, the Bank does not use the materiality threshold.

For corporate credit exposures, the impairment analysis (test) result determines whether
or not impairment is identified. The test is run upon identifying an impairment trigger. Impairment
triggers for corporate credit exposures include:

) &

danger of bankruptcy or another financial reorganisation has been reported, both of which
may lead to a failure to repay the financial asset or to delayed repayment,

the client has discontinued to repay the principal, pay interest or commissions,
with the delay of +45 DPD,
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» the Bank assesses that the client will face difficulties in repaying the debt, that is the client
is undergoing material financial problems which may lead to a failure to repay the financial
asset or to delayed repayment,

> significant breach of contractual conditions by the client which may adversely impact
on future cash flows from a given financial assets item,

» disappearance of an active market for a given financial assets item held by the Bank
due to the financial problems of the issuer/client, which may have a negative influence
on future cash flows from a given financial assets item,

> credit debt restructuring for non-commercial reasons, that is due to client's material financial
hurdles. This refers to the situation when the client for the aforementioned reasons
has requested forbearance from the Bank or the Bank has already applied forbearance
towards the client; these can be in particular such situations as: lending tenor extension,
reduction of credit instalments, suspension of principal repayment or interest payment,

» major conflict among shareholders, loss of the sole/main counterparty, loss/death of a key
person in the entity when there is no suitable succession, random incident leading
to destruction of debtor’s key assets.

During the impairment identification process, the Bank first assesses whether there exist impairment
triggers for financial assets items.

The entire lending portfolio of retail, strategic and corporate network clients is tested for exposure
impairment. The debtor's credit exposure is tested for impairment automatically on a daily basis
for retail clients and at the monitoring dates in place for the regular and irregular portfolios
for strategic and corporate network clients.

Identification of the objective impairment evidence requires downgrading the client to the worst risk
rating without the necessity to carry out the impairment analysis (test).

If after the assessment we find that for a given financial assets item there are no reasons
for impairment, the item is included in the group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics, which indicate that the debtor is capable to repay the entire debt under
to the contractual terms and conditions. Impairment loss for such groups is subject to collective
assessment. If there is any evidence of impairment of loans and receivables, or investments held-to-
maturity measured at amortised cost, then the amount of the impairment is the difference between
the carrying amount of an asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
with the initial effective interest rate of a given financial instrument item.

Practically, for significant assets, impairment is calculated per assets item using the discounted
future cash flows of a given assets item; for insignificant assets - it is calculated collectively.
When estimating future cash flows, the available debtor data are considered; the debtor’s capacity
to repay the exposure is assessed in particular. For backed credit exposures, the expected future cash
flows on collateral execution are also used in the estimation, considering the time, costs
and impediments of payment recovery under collateral sale, among other factors.

If the existing evidence of impairment of an assets item or financial assets group measured
at the amortised cost indicate that there will be no expected future cash flows from
the abovementioned financial assets, the impairment loss of assets equals their carrying amount.

The impairment loss calculated collectively is estimated on the basis of historical loss experience
for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis
of current observable data (to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period
on which the historical loss experience is based), and also through elimination of the effects
of conditions in the historical period that do not exist currently.

The Bank regularly verifies the methodology and assumptions adopted to estimate future cash flows
in order to mitigate the differences between estimated and actual losses.
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For the purposes of calculation of the provision for the balance sheet and off-balance sheet
exposures shown as EAD, the probability of default (PD) method (modified PD parameter) is applied,
among others.

The mode of PD parameter calculation makes it possible to take account of the specific features
of individual products and related loss identification periods as well as the historical loss adjustments
made using the currently available data (in line with the Point-in-Time philosophy). Interest
and penalty payments are recognised using the cash-basis accounting method and they do not form
the basis for creation of impairment losses.

For IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) and INSFA (Individually Non- Significant Financial Assets)
portfolios, calculations are made with the use of PD, EAD and LGD parameters plus the loss
identification period as per the following formula:

Impairment loss = (1-(1-PD)"""*?) x (EAD + El) x LGD

Where:

» PD - probability of an impairment trigger occurrence over a 12 month horizon in line
with the Point-in-Time approach (i.e. taking account of the current risk profile of a given
portfolio),

> EAD (exposure at default) - current balance sheet exposure plus the projected balance sheet
equivalent of unutilised credit lines and off-balance sheet liabilities including the conversion
rate (the so called CCF or K-factor) in line with relevant EAD models.

> El (effective interest) - contractual interest accrued and unpaid including outstanding
commissions and effective interest rate adjustment for those exposures for which
the effective interest rate is set and contractual interest accrued and unpaid for those
exposures for which the effective interest rate is not set,

» LGD - the expected loss ratio, which is the complement to unity of the ratio
of the recoverable amount and the basis for impairment losses including all direct costs
incurred as of the impairment date until the end of the debt recovery process. Historical loss
parameters are adjusted with the data coming from current observations in order to account
for current market factors which were not present during the period covered with historical
observations and exclusions of effects of past developments which are no longer present
today,

> LIP - a loss identification period expressed in months, which depending on business segment
is:

e 8 months for small enterprises and consumer credits,
e 9 months for strategic clients, mid-sized and mid corporates, and

e 12 months for retail mortgage loans.

The PD parameter is 100% for impaired exposures (INSFA). The LGD parameter for calculating
the impairment loss under collective method for impaired exposures (with default) depends on the
time for which the exposure is impaired.

Moreover, for separated portfolios that comprise exposures defaulted for at least 2 or 3 years
(depending on the segment) the LGD parameter is also 100%.

The Group also verifies the conversion rate (the so-called CCF or K-factor) of utilisation of the free part
of the credit limit in the period from the reporting date to the default date to assure compliance
with IAS 37 concerning provisions for contingent off-balance sheet liabilities.

This approach allows specifically for identification of:
> the losses that have already occurred, and
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» the losses that occurred as at the impairment date, but have not been documented yet
(the so-called provision for incurred but not reported losses - IBNR).

The impairment is presented as a reduction of the carrying amount of the assets item through use
of an impairment loss and the amount of the loss (the impairment loss formed) is recognised
in the income statement for the period. For the medium-sized and mid-corp clients, after 2 years
of client being in default and when it is not possible to reclassify the client to the non-impaired
portfolio, exposure is fully (100%) covered with impairment loss or written off. For the segment
of retail clients in the same situation, the exposure is in 100% covered with the impairment loss after
the lapse of:

» 3 years for mortgage loans,
» 2 years for other credit exposures.

If in a consecutive period, the amount of loss due to the impairment decreases as a result of an event
that took place after the impairment (e.g. improved credit capacity assessment of the debtor),
the previous impairment loss is reversed through the income statement by a proper adjustment.
With regard to strategic clients and corporate clients of the sales network the Bank determined
the events whereunder it is possible to reverse credit exposure impairment (all of the below
mentioned conditions have to be met jointly):

> the client's stay in the impaired portfolio (INSFA or ISFA) is shorter than 12 months
and no impairment triggers were identified for the last 6 calendar months. However,
in the absence of impairment triggers, the exposure loss can be reversed immediately
after an external significant event which in the Bank’s opinion positively impacts client’s
situation has become probable or the Bank's exposure on the client has been considerably
reduced, or the Bank has obtained new exposure collateral,

> nodelays in repayment,

» the Bank assesses that the client will repay all their liabilities towards the Bank,
and the impairment test carried out taking account of the expected future cash flows
does not show impairment, and for the client having a forbearance exposure
it is additionally required that it is classified to the portfolio of non-performing exposures
for at least 12 months following forbearance identification.

6.11.2. Financial assets available for sale

The Bank assesses as at each balance sheet date whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment of financial assets classified as available for sale.

The evidence indicating that a financial asset or a group of financial assets have been impaired may
result from one or more conditions which are presented hereinbelow:

» significant financial problems of the issuer (e.g. material negative equity, losses incurred
in the current year exceeding the equity, termination of credit facility agreement of material
value at other bank),

» breach of contractual terms and conditions, specifically with regard to default or delay
in repayment of liabilities due (e.g. interest or nominal value), interpreted as materialisation
of the issuer’s credit risk,

» awarding the issuer with repayment facilities by their creditors, which would not be awarded
in different circumstances,

> high probability of bankruptcy or other financial restructuring of the issuer,
» identification of financial assets impairment in the previous period,
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» disappearance of the active market for financial assets that may be due to financial
difficulties of the issuer,

» published analyses and forecasts of rating agencies or other units which confirm a given
(high) risk profile of the financial asset, or

» other tangible data pointing to determinable decrease in estimated future cash flows
resulting from financial assets group which appeared upon their initial recognition
in the Bank books. The data referred to hereinabove may concern unfavourable changes
in the payment situation on the part of issuers from a certain group or unfavourable
economic situation of a given country or its part, which translates into the repayment
problems sustained by this group of assets.

Additional conditions indicating the possibility of impairment which, due their nature, concern
equities:
» significant or long-lasting decrease in fair value of equities below their price/cost of purchase,
» decrease in fair value of equities is disproportionately high as compared to equities issued
by other entities from the same sector,
» significant unexpected deterioration of the issuer's profits, flows or net assets
as of the purchase date,
» reduction or cessation of dividend payout, and

> significant reduction of the issuer’s credit rating which took place after their purchase/initial
recognition in the Bank books.

Significant or long-lasting decrease in fair value is evaluated on the basis of the following quantitative
criteria pointing to the possibility of impairment occurrence:

» the current market price stays 25% below the purchase price for longer than 6 months,
» the current market price stays 40% below the purchase price, or

» the current market price stays 10%-25% below the purchase price for longer than 12
months.

The quantitative criteria are used objectively (i.e. their occurrence constitutes the basis
for impairment identification), however in case of confirming indisputable evidence it is also possible
that:

» impairment is not identified, or

» impairment is identified, although quantitative criteria do not confirm it, yet other available,
identified and confirmed conditions prove that such impairment has occurred.

In case of objective evidence for impairment of available-for-sale financial assets item,
the aggregated losses so far recognized directly as equity are derecognized therefrom
and recognized in the income statement, even if financial assets item has not been excluded from
the balance sheet.

The amount of the cumulative loss that is removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement for an investment in an equity instrument
classified as available for sale is not reversed through income statement. If, in a subsequent period,
the fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be
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objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal recognized
in the income statement.

6.11.3. Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured,
or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses
are not reversed.

6.12. Forbearance and non-performing exposures

In 2014, new principles of identification of and reporting on transactions with forbearance
and non-performing exposures were set on the basis of the draft European Banking Authority (EBA)
Technical Standards No. EBA/ITS/2013/03/rev1 of 24 July 2014.

In 2015 the Bank made a post-implementation review of the approach used in that regard
so as to confirm compliance with the Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) 2015/1278 of 9 July
2015 amending Implementing Regulation (EU) No 680/2014 laying down implementing technical
standards with regard to supervisory reporting of institutions as regards instructions, templates
and definitions. The Bank, having taken account of the results of that review, redefined adequately its
internal regulations.

Forbearance is defined:

» the client suffering from permanent financial difficulties, which result or could result
in a client defaulting on the debt service as per the terms and conditions of the agreement,

» was provided non-commercial forbearance facilities under conditions diverging from market
standards, so as to enable the client to meet the obligations in accordance
with the agreement or to save the client from repayment difficulties (credit agreement
modification or refinancing) and at the same time

» the client accepted the new terms and conditions of the agreement, i.e. a relevant
agreement was concluded or the terms and conditions of the original agreement were
changed.

The Bank identifies forbearance (in the regular and non-regular portfolios, including
the non-performing one) also as of the effective date of the forbearance-related covenant
put in the original loan agreement, under which the terms and conditions of the loan agreement
can later be changed in the situation of the client financial hurdles as long as all of the following
conditions are met: the client is facing problems and has applied for that covenant taking effect
and the Bank has approved that application plus if that covenant did not come into force the client
would or could be classified into the non-performing portfolio.

For the retail segment - all exposures in restructuring are deemed forbearance exposures.
Impairment is recognised for exposures in restructuring.

As non-performing exposures the Bank recognises those exposures that meet at least one
of the below criteria:

» significant exposure is overdue over 90 days,
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» the Bank is of the opinion that there is little probability that the client will meet all their credit
liabilities without the Bank having to take actions such as satisfaction from collateral
(regardless of the overdue amount and the number of days past due).

Exposures are also classified as non-performing exposures when arrears of +30 DPD occur for the
forbearance exposure or when another forbearance is granted for such exposure, while that refers
exclusively to the cases when the client with the forbearance status was after obtaining that status
in the non-performing portfolio and subsequently was upgraded to the performing portfolio.

The forbearance can:

» not significantly change the material conditions or expected future cash flows of an existing
financial asset, or

» change significantly the material conditions or expected future cash flows versus
the conditions or expected future cash flows of the existing financial asset.

Then, accordingly:

> the expected future cash flows for the changed financial asset subject to forbearance
will be recognised in the valuation of the existing financial asset on the basis
of the expected exercise period and the amounts discounted with the initial effective interest
rate for the existing financial asset, or

> the existing financial asset is derecognised and the new financial asset is carried through
the balance sheet at fair value as at the initial recognition date, while the difference between
the existing and the new assets is carried through profit and loss. Such recognition
is independent of the change or lack of change of the transaction legal form and is based
on its economic content.

7. Investment property

Investment property is property (land or a building, or part of a building, or both) held by the Bank
(acting as the owner or the lessee under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. At the same time, such a real property is:

» occupied by the Bank only to a small extent, and
> itis not for sale as part of the reqular operations of the Bank.

Therefore, an investment property generates cash flows largely independent of the other assets
held by the Bank. An investment property is measured initially at its cost (purchase price
and any directly attributable expenditure). After the initial recognition, investment property value
is not depreciated. It is measured with the use of the fair value model. A gain or loss arising from
a change in the value of investment property is recognised in the income statement for the period
in which it arises and is shown in Net income on other basic activities, in the item: Fair value
measurement of investment properties. The fair value of investment property reflects market
conditions at the balance sheet date.
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8. Non-financial assets

8.1. Property, plant and equipment
8.1.1. Own property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are non-current assets and costs to construct such assets.
Non-current assets include property, plant and equipment with an expected period of use above
one year, maintained to be used to serve the Bank’s needs or to be transferred to other entities,
based on the lease contract or for administrative purposes.

Property, plant and equipment, with the exception of land and buildings, are recorded at historical
costs less depreciation and impairment. The historical costs are made up of the purchase price/
manufacturing cost and the costs directly related to the purchase of assets.

Each component part of property, plant and equipment whose purchasing price or manufacturing
cost is material in comparison with the purchase price or manufacturing cost of the entire item,
is depreciated separately. The Bank allocates the initial value of the property, plant and equipment
to its significant parts.

Land and buildings are carried in accordance with the revaluation model, after initial recognition
at a revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are made
with sufficient reqularity to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using fair value at the balance sheet date.

The revaluation effect is reflected in the revaluation reserve/ revaluation allowance in case
of the value increase, or carried through the income statement in case of the carrying amount
decrease. However, the increase in value is recognised as income insofar as it reverses the decrease
of value due to revaluation of the same asset that was previously recognised as costs of a given
period. Similarly, the decrease of the asset’s value resulting from revaluation shall be set off against
the relevant surplus resulting from the previous revaluation of the same asset. The entire revaluation
surplus is carried through retained earnings at the time of withdrawing from use or selling the asset
item.

8.1.2. Subsequent costs

The Bank recognizes under the balance sheet item property, plant and equipment the costs
of replacement of certain elements thereof at the time they are incurred on proviso that the Bank
is likely to earn any asset-related prospective economic benefits and the purchase price or the cost
may be measured reliably. Other costs are recognised in the income statement at the time
they are incurred.

8.2. Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangible
assets are deemed to include assets which fulfil the following requirements:

» they can be separated from an economic entity and sold, transferred, licensed
or granted for use for a fee to third parties, both separately, and together with their
accompanying contracts, assets or liabilities, and

» they arise from contractual titles or other legal titles, irrespective of whether those
are transferable or separable from the business entity or from other rights and obligations.
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8.2.1. Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition of an entity is recognized at the acquisition price being the surplus
of the aggregate of:

» provided payment,
» sums of all non-controlling shares in the acquired entity, and

> in the case of entities combination made gradually at fair value as at the day of acquiring
share in the capital of the acquired entity, previously belonging to the acquiring entity,

over the net amount determined as at the day of acquiring values of the identifiable acquired assets
and assumed liabilities.

The goodwill shown in the financial statements of the Bank was recognized pursuant
to the requirements binding on the day of first application of IFRS i.e. at acquisition price being
a surplus of the cost of combining the business entities over the interest of the acquirer's
in the fair value of all identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. After the initial
recognition, the goodwill is recognized at acquisition price less any accumulated impairment losses.

8.2.2. Computer software

Purchased computer software licences are capitalised in the amount of costs incurred
for the purchase and adaptation for use of specific computer software.

Costs of computer software development or maintenance of are shown when incurred.
8.2.3. Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets purchased by the Bank, are recognized at purchase price or production cost
less depreciation and total amount of impairment losses.

8.2.4. Subsequent costs

Subsequent costs incurred after initial recognition of acquired intangible assets item are capitalised
when it is probable that such expenditures will ensure an inflow of economic benefits to the Bank.
In other cases, costs are carried through profit or loss in the reporting period in which they were
incurred.

8.3. Depreciation and amortization charges

The depreciation/amortization charge of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
is applied using the straight line method, using defined depreciation/amortization rates throughout
the period of their useful lives.

The depreciable/amortizable amount is the cost of an assets item, or other amount substituted
for cost, less its residual value. The useful life, amortization/depreciation rates and residual values
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are reviewed annually. Conclusions
of the review may lead to a change of depreciation/amortization periods recognized prospectively
from the date of application (the effect of this change is carried through profit or loss in accordance
with IAS 8).

In case of buildings valued at fair value, the accumulated depreciation balance
at the revaluation date is removed from the carrying value gross, and the net carrying amount
adjusted to the revalued value.
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Depreciation and amortization charges are recognized in the income statement. At each balance
sheet date goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful life are regularly tested
for impairment. The amortization periods are as follows:

» land and buildings 50 years

» leaseholds improvements rent and lease term of maximum 10 years
» vehicles and others 3-7years

» equipment 5 years

» costs of software development 3 years

» software licenses 3 years

8.4. Impairment of other non- financial assets

For each balance sheet date, the Bank assesses the existence of objective evidence indicating
impairment of a non-current assets item. If such evidence exists, the Bank performs an estimation of
the recoverable value. If, and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced to its recoverable amount.

As regards company goodwill, it is tested for impairment as at the balance sheet date regardless
of whether or not there are conditions of impairment in place.

8.4.1. Recognition of impairment loss

If there are conditions of impairment of common property, i.e. the assets which do not generate cash
independently from other assets or groups of assets, and the recoverable amount of the individual
asset included among common property cannot be determined, the Bank determines
the recoverable amount at the level of the cash-generating unit, to which the given asset belongs.
An impairment loss is recognized if the book value of the asset or cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount.

The goodwill impairment is determined by estimating the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit the given goodwill applies to. Should the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit be lower than the carrying amount, impairment loss is made. The impairment loss is recognized
in the income statement.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce the goodwill of the cash-generating units (group
of units) in the first place and then reduce proportionally the book value of other assets in the unit
(group of units).

8.4.2. Reversing impairment loss

Goodwill impairment loss is not subject to reversal. An impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed if, and only if, there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount.

An impairment loss can be reversed only up to the amount, at which the book value of impaired
asset does not exceed its book value, which decreased by depreciation charge, would be established,
if no impairment loss had been recognized.
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9. Leasing contracts and factoring services

9.1. The Bank as lessor

The Bank is a party to lease contracts, on the basis of which it grants and is paid for the use
or the benefits on the non-current assets and intangible assets. Leasing agreements are classified
by the Bank based on the extent whereto the risk and benefits due to holding of leased asset
are attributable to lessor and lessee.

A leasing agreement is considered as financial leasing provided the following terms and conditions
are met individually or jointly:

> the agreement transfers the asset ownership to the lessee before the end of leasing term,

> the agreement includes the right of lessee to purchase the asset at the price which,
as expected, is that lower than the fair value agreed as at the date when purchase right
execution becomes feasible that at the leasing commencement date it is certain
that the lessee shall take advantage of this right,

» the leasing term corresponds in majority to the term of asset economic lifetime, even
if the legal title is not transferred,

> the present value of minimum leasing fees as at the leasing commencement date in principle
equals the leased asset fair value,

> the leased assets are specialised enough that only the lessee may take advantage thereof,
without making major modifications thereto,

> the lessee may prolong the agreement (or conclude a new one) for additional term
for the fee which is materially lower compared to the market,

> the lessee may terminate the agreement and any losses of the lessor arising therefrom shall
be covered by the lessee, or

» profits or losses from/of fluctuation of asset residual value are attributable to the lessee.

The leasing agreements whereunder the lessor basically retains all the risk as well as benefits arising
from holding of leased asset are classified as operational leasing agreements.

The leasing agreement shall be concluded for the term ranging from five to ten years, including
transfer of the legal title to the beneficiary (lessee) after leasing agreement expiry. The ownership
of leased asset is the collateral for the liabilities arising from leasing agreements.

There are no conditional leasing fees within the Bank. There are no unguaranteed residual values
attributable to the lessor within the Bank.

In case of lease contracts, which result in transferring substantially all the risks and rewards following
the ownership of that asset under lease the object of such lease agreement is derecognized
from the balance sheet. A receivable amount is recognized, in an amount equal to the present value
of minimum lease payments. Lease payments are divided into financial income and reduction
of the balance of receivables in such a way as to reach a fixed rate of return from the outstanding
receivables.

Interest on financial lease is presented in Interest income, in the item: Interest on loans and other
receivables to customers, further split into Interest on leases.

Lease payments for contracts which do not fulfil the requirements of a finance lease
are recognized as income in the income statement, using the straight-line method, throughout
the period of lease.
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9.2. The Bank as a lessee

The Bank is also a party to lease contracts, under which it takes another party’s non-current assets
or intangible assets for an agreed period for paid use or other benefits.

In case of lease contracts, under which essentially all risks and rewards resulting from ownership
of the leased assets are transferred, subject of such lease agreement is recognized as a non-current
asset, and a liability is recognized in the amount equal to the present value of minimum lease
payments as of the date of commencement of the lease. Lease payments are divided into financial
costs and reduction of the balance of the liability in such way as to reach the fixed rate of interest
on the outstanding liability. Financial costs are recognized directly in the income statement.

Non-current assets which are the basis of the finance lease contract are depreciated/amortized
in the manner defined for the Bank's non-current assets. However, if it is uncertain whether
the ownership of an asset has been transferred, then non-current assets used pursuant to finance
lease contracts are depreciated over the shorter of two: the expected useful life or the period
of lease.

Lease payments for contracts which do not qualify as financial lease are recognized as costs
in the income statement using the straight-line method throughout the period of lease
and are shown in the General and administrative expenses, in the item: Overheads, further split into
Material and leasing costs.

9.3. Factoring services

The Bank provides factoring services in local and international trade. Handling and financing
receivables as well as risk management are their essence. Further, as part of factoring, the Bank
offers additional services being financial limits for debtors, debt recovery and takeover of trading risk.
Local factoring without taking over risk (without recourse) prevails in the factoring operations
of the Bank.

Factoring amounts due are classified at the purchase date (initial recognition date) as cash loans
and amounts due are thus measured at amortised cost at effective interest rate considering
commission income.

Factoring receivables are purchased by the Bank under agreements negotiated with clients case
by case. The said receivables are recognized in the balance sheet as an increase in financial assets
or decrease in cash, or increase in financial liabilities. Receivables can be held until maturity
and maturity dates can be postponed.

Factoring receivables with recourse and without recourse are presented differently
in the financial statements. Factoring receivables with recourse are presented in the balance sheet
as net amounts due; i.e, only financed receivables less the amount of the security deposit.
The factoring receivables without recourse are presented separately; i.e., all financial and non-
financial receivables are presented as amounts due, while receivables excluded from funding
and the security deposit are shown as liabilities.

The base income on factoring operations comprises commissions and interest on the advance
payments made for the receivables purchased. Commission income is carried through profit or loss
at the time of execution of activity under the factoring agreement concluded.

Income on provision of factoring services comprises factoring commissions, limit fees, preparation
fees, insurance fees, handling fees and other fees as given in the price list.

Interest income includes regular and discount interest. Interest is accrued monthly on the actual
factoring exposure. Discount interest is charged up-front on the amount of factoring receivables
acquired, considering their maturity.

Interest income is shown in the income statement, in item Net interest income, while commission
income is shown in item Net commission income.
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10. Other balance sheet items

10.1. Other trade receivables and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognized and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance
for any uncollectible amounts. An estimate of allowance for doubtful debts is made when collection
of the full amount is no longer probable.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, the value of receivable is determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows to the current value, with applying the discount rate
that reflects the current market assessments of time value of money. If the method consisting
in discounting has been applied, the increase of receivables due to time lapse is recognized
as financial revenues.

Trade and other receivables include settlements with off-takers in particular.

Budgetary receivables are recognized as part of other financial assets, except for corporate income
tax receivables, which are a separate item on the balance sheet.

10.2. Liabilities

Other financial liabilities comprise in particular: payables for the benefit of tax office due to goods
and service tax, settlements with suppliers and payables due to received prepayments,
which will be settled by means of delivering goods, services or tangible assets. Other financial
liabilities are recognized in the amounts due.

10.3. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operation

The Bank classifies a non-current assets item (or disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying
amount is recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset (or disposal group) must be available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets
(or disposal groups) and its sale must be highly probable, i.e. the appropriate level of management
must be committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group), and an active programme to locate
a buyer and complete the plan must have been initiated. Further, the asset must be actively
marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value. In addition, the sale
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date
of classification.

Non-current assets held for sale are priced at the lower of two: their carrying amount or fair value
less cost to sell. Assets classified in this category are not depreciated/amortized.

Where the criteria for classification as non-current assets for sale are no longer met, the Bank
will no longer classify that asset as an asset for sale (or a group of assets for sale) but reclassify
it as appropriate. In such a case, the Bank measures the asset that is no longer classified
as the asset for sale (or that is no longer part of a group for sale) at the lower of the following
amounts:

> its carrying amount from the period before the asset (or disposal group) was classified
as held for sale, adjusted for any depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have
been recognized had the asset (or disposal group) not been classified as held for sale, and

> its recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Discontinued operations are components of the Bank that either have been disposed
of or are classified as held for sale and represent a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, are a part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
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of business or geographical area of operations or are a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view
to resale. The classification to this category takes place at the moment of sale or when the operation
meets criteria of the operation classified as held for sale, if this moment took place previously.
Operations held for sale, which are to be no longer used, can be also classified as a discontinued
operation.

10.4. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of a cash flow statement include: cash in hand and cash

held at the Central Bank, cash equivalents e.g. balances on current accounts and overnight deposits
held by other banks.

11. Equity

Equity comprises the share capital, share premium, revaluation allowance and retained earnings.
All balances of capital and funds are recognized at nominal value.

11.1. Share capital

Share capital is presented at nominal value, in accordance with the charter and entry
into the commercial register of the dominant entity.

11.1.1. Own shares
If the Bank acquires its own shares, then the paid amount together with the costs directly attributed
to such purchase is recognized as a change in the equity. Acquired own shares are treated as own
shares and disclosed as reduction of the equity.

11.1.2. Dividends

Dividends for the financial year which have been approved by the General Meeting, but not paid
as at the balance sheet day are disclosed as dividend liabilities shown in the item Other Liabilities.

11.2. Share premium

Share premium is formed from agio obtained from the issue of shares less the attributable direct
costs incurred with that issue.

11.3. Revaluation allowance

Revaluation allowance is formed as a result of:
» revaluation of financial instruments classified as available for sale,
» valuation of derivatives for the element being the effective cash flow hedge, and
» revaluation of non-current assets carried at fair value.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities resulting from above mentioned revaluation are included
in the revaluation reserve. The revaluation reserve is not subject to profit distribution.

11.4. Retained earnings

Retained earnings are formed from profit charges and are allocated for the purposes specified
in the company's charter) or other requlations. Retained earnings comprise:

ING &

43



ING Bank Slgski S.A.
Annual financial statements for the period from 01 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 (PLN million)

\

other supplementary capital,

other reserve capital,

general banking risk fund,

undistributed result from previous years, and
» net result of current year.

\

\

\

Other supplementary capital, other reserve capital and general banking risk fund are formed
from profit charges and are allocated for the purposes specified in the company's charter
or other regulations.

General banking risk fund is formed in accordance with the Banking Act of 29 August 1997
with subsequent amendments, from profit after tax.

The net financial result represents the gross result under the performance statement for the current
year, adjusted with the corporate income tax.

12. Prepayments and deferred income

12.1. Prepayments

Prepayments comprise particular expenses which will be carried through profit or loss as being
accrued over the future reporting periods. Deferred costs include primarily provisions for material
costs due to services provided for the Bank by counterparties, as well as insurance costs paid
in advance to be settled in the future periods. Prepayments are presented in the balance sheet under
Other assets item.

12.2. Deferred income

Deferred income comprises mainly fees amortized on a straight-line basis and other types
of income collected in advance which will be carried through profit or loss in future reporting periods.
Deferred income is presented under Other liabilities balance sheet item.

13. Employee benefits

13.1. Benefits under the Act on employee pension schemes

Expenses incurred under the defined contributions scheme are recognised as costs in the income
statement.

13.2. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits of the Bank (other than termination benefits) comprise
salaries, bonuses, paid annual leave and social security contributions.

The Bank recognizes the anticipated, undiscounted value of short-term employee benefits
as an expense of an accounting period when an employee has rendered service (regardless
of payment date) in correspondence with other on-balance liabilities.

The amount of short-term employee benefits on the unused holidays to which Bank employees
are entitled is calculated as the sum of unused holidays to which particular Bank employees
are entitled.

ING &

44



ING Bank Slgski S.A.
Annual financial statements for the period from 01 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 (PLN million)

13.3. Long-term employee benefits
13.3.1. Benefits under the Labour Code regulations

Provisions for retirement severance pay granted under benefits due to regulations of the Labour
Code are estimated on the basis of the actuarial valuation. The provisions being the result
of an actuarial valuation are recognised and adjusted on an annual basis.

Provisions for long-term employee benefits are recognised in the balance sheet item Provisions
in correspondence with costs of labour in the income statement. The assumptions of the method
used to compute and present actuarial gains and losses are given in the item concerning estimates
on pension and disability provisions.

13.3.2. ING Group long-term incentive system benefits

By 2012, the Bank was a participant of the Longterm Sustainable Performance Plan (LSPP), formerly
LEO (i.e. Longterm Equity Ownership), introduced by ING Group. The system motivates employees
of ING Group entities by correlating additional benefits granted thereto with ING Group financial
results. The programme was addressed to Bank Management Board Members, executive staff
and senior specialists. The system functioned in two options:
» Standard (awarded by 2005) - employee may become a holder of ING shares or obtain cash
performance; two instruments are offered under the Standard system:

— share options, and

— performance shares,

» Phantom (awarded in the years 2006-2010) - employee may obtain cash performance;
two instruments are offered under the system:
— phantom options, and

— performance units.

In the years 2011 - 2012, the LSPP programme functioned in a modified form, i.e. share options/
phantom options were no longer granted and only performance shares were allocated.
Both above-mentioned system options have a 10Y maturity and may be exercised after 3 years
of their issue provided that the option holder is an employee of the Bank (or another ING Group
entity) or has retired. The option exercise price is the difference between the option exercise price
as set by Euronext Amsterdam at the exercise date in the so-called open period set by ING Group
and the initial price guaranteed in the option strike price.

Performance shares / Performance units are awarded conditionally. The number of instruments
received depends on the ING Group's results as at the end of the period adopted.

The number of instruments to be exercised is driven by the ROE ratio (annual ratio). Depending
on the ratio value, from 0% to 150% of instruments can be exercised.

As at the balance sheet date, the Bank recognizes in their books the measurement of instruments
held by Bank employees.

The fair value of options granted is recognised as personnel costs (on the other side of the balance
sheet - under capital) and is allocated throughout the vesting period.

13.3.3. Variable remuneration programme benefits

The Bank implemented the variable remuneration programme that is addressed to:

» persons holding managerial positions having a material impact on the Bank risk profile
(to satisfy the guidelines arising from Polish Financial Supervision Authority Resolution
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No. 258/2011, Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council
of 26 June 2013, Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 604/2014 of 04 March 2014
supplementing Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council
with regard to requlatory technical standards with respect to qualitative and appropriate
quantitative criteria to identify categories of staff whose professional activities have
a material impact on an institution's risk profile), and

» employees displaying special potential and skills (whereto a part of the programme related
to the financial instrument granted is addressed).

The objective of the programme is to support the Bank’s and its clients’ long-term interests
and to correlate the performance of key employees with the Bank's results through tying
the amount of some of the granted variable remuneration to the price of ING Bank Slgski's shares.
Variable remuneration is defined based on appraisal of performance of the programme participants.

The programme benefits are granted in two options:

> the first option for people holding managerial positions having material impact on the risk
profile of the Bank consists of two parts:

— one paid in cash (no more than 50%), and
— one granted as phantom stock (at least 50%, after rounding up to full instrument),
making the holder eligible to obtain cash whose final amount will be conditional
on the price of ING Bank Slgski's shares (i.e., the median of closing prices of Bank's shares
on the Warsaw Stock Exchange in the relevant period),
» in the second option to the employees displaying special potential or skills
the entire benefit is granted in form of phantom stock.

The cash element is paid out:
» for the non-deferred part - immediately after the year of work the employee’s performance
is appraised for,
» for the deferred part - payments are made after deferral periods (of 1, 2 or 3 years).

For the benefits rendered under option one, during the deferral period the amount of variable
remuneration is verified according to the programme assumptions.

The programme element paid in cash is recognised following the approach of projected unit rights
and is settled over time throughout the vesting period (i.e., both during the appraisal period
understood as the year of work for which employees obtain benefits and during the deferral period -
adequate benefit components). The value of benefit is recognised as the obligation towards
employees in correspondence with the income statement.

As regards the benefits granted in the form of phantom stock a one-year retention period applies;
it refers to both the part granted after the assessment year (non-deferred part) and to the deferred
part of the benefit under the same principles as for the cash part (annual, two-year or three-year
periods). The employee who was granted the benefit shall not exercise the phantom stock-related
rights during the holding period.

The fair value of phantom stock determined using the principles adopted (i.e. based
on the estimates made upon applying the reduction factor) is allocated throughout the vesting
period. The value of benefit is recognised as the obligation towards employees in correspondence
with the income statement.
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14. Provisions

Provisions, including provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities, are reported when the Bank has
a legal or constructive obligation (common law) as a result of past events, as well as when
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect
is material, the amount of provision is measured by discounted, expected cash flows using pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and those risks specific
to the liability.

This is also applicable for the recognition of provisions for risk-bearing off-balance sheet liabilities
including guarantees, letters of credit and irrevocable unused credit lines.

Provisions for the irrevocable unused credit lines for corporate exposures are formed and recognised
together with impairment losses for credit receivables.

The Bank establishes provisions for restructuring costs only on condition that the general criteria
of recognising provisions under IAS 37 be fulfilled and in particular but not limited to the situation
when the Bank is in possession of the specific, formal restructuring plan determining at least
the operations or a part thereof, basic locations, place of employment, the functions and estimated
number of employees entitled to compensation, the expenditure to be undertaken and the term
of execution. The commencement of restructuring procedure or the public announcement thereof
is the condition indispensable for establishing the provision. The established provisions comprise only
the direct and necessary expenditures to be undertaken due to the restructuring procedure, which
are not related to the current business operations nor cover the future operating costs.

The Bank maintains the detailed record of court cases and other amounts due of legal claims nature.
Potential future settlements will be recognised under established provisions.

The Bank recognises the provisions for all estimated losses. In certain justified cases, despite the fact
that the Bank is entitled to reimburse the funds due to the provisions established, because of the
uncertainty whether the expected economic benefits be earned or not, the Bank may decide
not to recognise the assets there under in the financial statements.

15. Income statement

15.1. Net interest income

Interest income on financial assets classified as available for sale, loans and advances
and financial assets held to maturity are recognized in the income statement at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial assets item
or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate,
a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, an estimate of cash flows is made considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument but future credit losses are not considered.
The calculation includes all fees and commissions paid or received (external) between parties
to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts.

Interest income comprises interest and commission (received or due) recognized in the calculation
of the effective interest rate due to: loans with repayment schedule, intrabanking deposits
and securities held to maturity available for sale, held for trading and the ones which meet the
definition of loans and cash loans, and are classified to cash loans and receivables.
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In case impairment is recognized for a financial assets item or group of similar financial assets,
interest income is accrued based on the current amount of receivable (this is the value reduced
by revaluation charge) with the use of the interest rate according to which future cash flows were
discounted for impairment valuation.

Interest income on debt securities classified to trading portfolio or carried at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized under Interest income.

Interest revenue/ costs on interest rate derivatives and Interest revenue/ costs on current accrual
of the swap/forward points on FX-derivatives classified as held for trading are recognized under
Interest result on derivatives.

Interest revenue/ costs on derivatives designated as hedging instruments in the hedge accounting
are recognized under Net interest income.

15.2. Commission income and costs

Commission income arises from providing financial services by the Bank and comprises fees
for extending loans, the Bank’'s pledge to extend loans, cards issue, cash management services,
brokerage services, insurance products-related services and asset management services.
Commission income comprises also margins on FX derivatives transactions concluded with corporate
clients.

Fees and commissions (both income and expenses) directly attributed to the rise of financial assets
with repayment schedule are recognised in the income statement as effective interest rate
component and are part of the interest income.

The Bank recognizes the following effective interest rate-adjusting commissions:
» commissions for application review and credit commitment letter issue;
» commissions for limit/overdraft granted;
> commissions for loan or limit/overdraft extension;
» commissions for receivables/bills of exchange purchased, for bill of exchange discount;
» commission for restructured loan processing;

» commission for amending the credit agreement as to the amount, currency or schedule
of repayments; and

» costs of credit and cash loan agency commissions.

Other commissions that are interwoven with occurrence of assets without defined schedules
are cleared on a straight line basis throughout the contract.

The Bank recognizes the following commissions as the ones cleared on a straight line basis:

» the commissions described as the commissions adjusting the effective interest rate
for the loans for whose commissions no cash flows can be estimated (first of all, current
account overdrafts, working capital loans and revolving loans);

» commissions for issuing, confirming or prolonging the time and increasing the amount
of the guarantee or letter of credit;

» commissions for multi-facility agreements; and
» commissions for the loan or limit/ overdraft granted to start another lending year.

If during the life of the contract the terms and conditions of credit exposure are changed, the whole
outstanding part of commission is recognised in the income statement on the day when the terms
and conditions are updated, provided that the outstanding amount of commission is insignificant.
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Fees on pledge to extend a loan, which is likely to be taken, are deferred and as at the date
of financial assets rise are settled as the component of effective interest rate or using straight-line
method based on above mentioned criterion.

Other fees and commissions relating to the financial services offered by the Bank - like cash
management services, brokerage services and asset management services - are recognised
in the income statement at the time of service provision.

Commission income that was accrued and is due but was not paid on time are derecognised
from the Bank’s financial result upon the lapse of 90 days.

15.2.1. Commission income and costs of bancassurance services

Fees and commissions for insurance products are recognised in the income statement as per their
economic content and are classified as:

» commissions being part and parcel of a fee under a financial instrument wherewith
the insurance product is linked,

> fee for agency service, and

» fee for additional services after the insurance product sale.

Prior to implementation of the insurance product, in order to recognise it properly in the income
statement, the Bank analyses features of the insurance product and also the link between
the insurance product and banking product. In this analysis, the Bank takes account
of the prevalence of the economic content over the legal form. The factors analysed by the Bank
include:

» manner in which an insurance product is offered, option of purchasing a banking product
without the insurance product as well as option of purchasing only the insurance product
at the Bank,

» pricing conditions of the two products sold together and separately,

> profitability of the insurance and banking products sold together and separately,

> sales target of combined products versus sales target of the same banking products sold
without insurance,

» option of concluding an insurance agreement outside the Bank,

» number of resignations and the value of refunded insurance premiums,

» settlement cycle with a client, and

> scope of activities performed by the Bank for the insurer and their duration.

Insurance products offered with loans are treated by the Bank as linked to lending products, mainly
because of lack of the possibility to purchase at the Bank an insurance product without a loan
or a cash loan.

For the absolute majority of insurance products linked with lending products functioning
at the Bank, the income on insurance products is earned based on monthly settlements with both
the insurer and the client. Since the client may resign at any time from the insurance coverage
for the following month, the Bank treats such insurances as renewed each month and settled
for each month separately. Therefore, the income on insurance products settled monthly
is recognised in the income statement also on a monthly basis. The Bank recognises the income
on such insurances in the commission income on insurance products.

The Bank analogically presents the costs directly related to these insurance products.

Such an approach ensures compliance with the matching principle. At the same time, the Bank
monitors the level of costs under insurance products linked to the lending products in terms
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of legitimacy of division into interest income and commission income. At present such a division
would not materially impact the Bank's income statement. The Bank applies an analogical approach
to real property insurance with mortgage loans. Taking account of the materiality principle, the Bank
presents full income on this insurance in the net commission income.

Most insurance products linked with the Bank’s deposit products (current accounts and savings
accounts) use the monthly-settlement structure. Therefore, the income on insurance products
settled monthly is recognised in the income statement also on a monthly basis. The Bank recognises
the income on such insurances in the commission income on insurance products.

Commissions under insurance products not linked to banking products are recognised in the income
statement:

> on a straight-line basis during the insurance policy term - if the Bank, apart from other sales
operations, also provides additional services during the insurance term, and

> on a one-off basis - if the Bank does not provide any additional services during
the insurance policy term.

Should there be a risk of refund of the fee under the insurance product, the Bank decreases
its income by the amounts of estimated provisions. The provisions for refunds are established based
on the historical data on actual refunds made in the past and based on projections as to the amount
of refunds in the future.

15.3. Net income on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and FX result

Net income on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and FX result includes gains
and losses arising from disposal and change of fair value of assets and liabilities held for trading
and designated at initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

Result on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and FX result also includes
adjustments of fair value due to risk for unexecuted FX-options transactions.

Result from accrued interest and settlement of discount or premium on debt securities held
for trading or at fair value through profit or loss is recognized as interest income.

15.4. Net income on investments

The net income on investments comprises profits or losses resulting from sale of financial assets
classified as available for sale and earnings from dividends. Dividend income is recognized
in the income statement when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.

15.5. Net income on hedge accounting

This item includes the measurement of hedged and hedging transactions under fair value hedging
accounting and the result on measurement of hedging instruments in the ineffective part of hedge
relationship of cash flows hedge accounting.

15.6. Net income on other basic activities

Net income on other basic activities comprises expenses and income not attributed directly
to Bank's banking activity. These include in particular: the result due to holding
an investment property, sale of assets (non-current assets and intangible assets), income on sale
of other services, income due to recovered bad debts, received and paid damages, penalties
and fines.
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16. Taxes

16.1. Income tax

Income tax is recognized as current and deferred tax. Current income tax is recognized
in the income statement. Deferred income tax is recognized in the income statement
or equity depending on type of temporary differences.

Current tax is a liability calculated based on taxable income at the binding tax rate at the balance
sheet date including adjustments of prior year tax liability.

16.2. Deferred income tax

The Bank forms a provision for deferred tax for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets with regard to all deductible temporary differences to extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised according
to accounting reqgulations and according to legal requlations concerning corporate income taxation.
A positive net difference is recognized in liabilities as Deferred tax provision. A negative net difference
is recognized under Deferred tax assets.

The deferred tax reserve is made using the balance sheet method for all positive temporary
differences as of the balance sheet date arising between tax value of assets and liabilities
and their carrying value disclosed in the financial report, except for situations where deferred tax
provision arises from:

» initial recognition of goodwill;
» goodwill, which amortization has no taxable expense; or

» initial recognition of an assets item or liability with a transaction which does not constitute
a merger of economic entities and which on its origination has no impact on the net financial
profit or taxable income or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all negative timing differences as at the balance sheet date
between the tax value of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount disclosed in the financial
statements and unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized in such amount in which
taxable income is likely to be achieved allowing to set off negative timing differences, except
for the situations when the component of deferred tax assets arises from the initial recognition
of an assets item or liability with a transaction which does not constitute a merger of economic
entities and on its origination have no impact on the net financial profit or taxable income or loss.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax assets item shall be verified for each balance sheet date
and reduced if it is no longer likely to achieve taxable income sufficient for a partial or full realization
of the deferred tax component.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax provisions are estimated with the use of the tax rates which
are expected to be in force when the assets item is realized or provision eliminated, assuming the tax
rates (and tax provisions) legally or factually in force as of the balance sheet date.

Income tax for the items directly presented in equity is presented in equity.

Deferred tax assets and provisions are recognized by the Bank in the statement of financial position
after offsetting at the level of each consolidated entity. The Bank offsets deferred tax assets
and deferred tax provisions, where it has legal title to effect such offsetting, and the deferred assets
and provisions pertain to the same taxpayer.
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16.3. Other taxes

Income, costs and assets are recognised less the value added tax, tax on civil law acts, and other
taxes on sales, except where the tax on sale, paid upon purchase of goods and services,
is not recoverable from the tax authorities; in that case, the sales tax is recognized accordingly
as a part of the cost of acquisition of an asset, or as part of a cost item.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable from or payable to the tax authorities is recognized
in the statement of financial position as an item of receivables or liabilities.

V. Comparability of financial data

Amendments to the Income Statement

The Bank amended the manner of recognizing the net income on sale of debt securities covered
by the fair value hedge accounting in the annual financial statements for the period
from 1 3January 2015 to 31 December 2015 as compared to the annual financial statements
for the period from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2014. As a result of the amendment:

» netincome on sale of securities is now recognised under the item Net income on investments
but only in the portion corresponding to the valuation under unsecured risks,

» the result of the hedging strategy i.e. result on valuation of securities under secured risk
and valuation of hedging instruments is recognised under the item Net income on hedge
accounting,

» valuation of derivatives as of hedging strategy revocation is recognised in the item
Net income on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and FX resuilt.

The changes described above required a restatement of the comparable data; they did not, however,
impact on the level of the financial result as presented in the financial statements.

The table below highlights the individual items of the income statement as they were presented
in the annual financial statements for the 2014 and in the current statements.

2014 financial 2015 financial

INCOME STATEMENT statements statements

the period the period

from 01 Jan 2014 change from 01 Jan 2014

to 31 Dec 2014 to 31 Dec 2014

(approved data) (comparable data)

Net income on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 89.8 04 89.4
and FX result

Net income on investments 67.9 0.2 68.1

Net income on hedge accounting 8.7 0.2 8.9

VI. Notes to the financial statements

1. Segment reporting

Segments of operation

ING Bank Slgski is managed within the areas defined in the Bank's business model. The Bank’s
business model, above all for the purpose of management reporting, includes division of clients
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into two main segments:
> retail banking segment, and
» corporate banking segment.

The segments are separated based on the financial (especially turnover, level of accumulated assets)
and subject-related criteria. The specific rules of putting clients to respective segments are governed
by the clients segmentation criteria specified in the Bank’s internal requlations.

ING Bank Slgski S.A. has separated in organisational terms the operations performed by the Bank
Treasury. The mission of the Bank Treasury is to support the development of the Bank’s business lines
by assuming their market risks to protect them against negative effects of market changes.

The Bank Treasury manages short-term and long-term liquidity risk in line with the effective
reqgulations and risk appetite internally set at the Bank, manages interest rate risk and invests
surpluses obtained from business lines while maintaining the liquidity buffer in the form of liquid
assets.

The Bank Treasury's net income on operations is allocated to the business lines considering
its support function for the Bank’s business lines.

Retail banking segment

Within the framework of retail banking, the Bank provides services for individual customers
(segments of mass customers and wealthy customers) and for sole traders.

This activity is analysed by the leading products, including i.e.: credit products (overdraft
in the current account - ROR, loans under cards, hire purchase loans, housing loans, mortgage loans,
contract loans granted by the Building Society), deposit products (current accounts, term deposits,
savings accounts), structured products, ING fund units, brokerage services and bank cards.

Corporate banking segment

Corporate banking area encompasses as follows:
» providing services to institutional clients,
» Financial Markets products.

As institutional clients strategic clients, large corporate entities and mid-sized companies
are recognized. For corporate activity, the Bank provides reporting broken down by leading products
covering i.e. loan products (opex loans and capex loans), deposit products (current accounts, term
deposits and negotiated deposits, savings accounts), financial markets products, trust services,
capital market operations conducted by the parent.

Financial Markets products encompass operations performed in money and capital markets,
conducted both on the proprietary basis as well as for the customers’ benefit. This activity, currency
covers money and derivative instrument market products and securities operations (treasury
securities, shares and notes).

Measurement

The segment’s assets and liabilities as well as the segment’s income and costs are measured based
on the accounting standards applied by the Bank, included in notes describing applied accounting
standards. In particular, both internal and external interest income and costs for individual segments
are determined with the use of the transfer price system within the Risk Transfer System (RTS).

Transfer prices are defined based on the yield curve for a given currency that is common for assets

ING &

53



ING Bank Slgski S.A.
Annual financial statements for the period from 01 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 (PLN million)

and liabilities. The transfer price that is determined for the products being assets and liabilities
with the same position on the yield curve is identical. The original transfer price - coming
from the product measurement regarding the yield curve can be modified and the factors adjusting
the transfer price can be the following: a premium for obtainment of long-term liquidity, matching
of the Bank's position, a hedging cost for sophisticated products and the pricing policy.
Thereafter, based on quotation rates available at news services, yield curves are developed using
mathematical equations.

Income, costs, results, assets and liabilities for a given segment account for elements
that are directly attributable to the segment in question, as well as element that may
be attributed to that segment based on reasonable premises.

The Bank presents segment's interest income less the cost of interest.

In 2015, the Bank updated the allocation key for ALCO income; further, the Bank Treasury's
net income on operations is allocated to business segments (it was recognised in the corporate
banking segment earlier). The 2014 data presented herein were made comparable.

Geographical segments

The Bank pursues business within the territory of the Republic of Poland.
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2015
]
Retail banking Cobrgr?IZ?rfg TOTAL
segment segment
Income total 2 044.5 1599.2 3643.7
net interest income 1489.6 853.9 2 3435
net commission income 347.6 603.7 951.3
other income/expenses 207.3 141.6 348.9
Expenses total 1296.0 739.0 2 035.0
Segment result 748.5 860.2 1608.7
Impairment losses 69.8 143.0 212.8
Result after impairment losses (profit before tax) 678.7 717.2 1395.9
Income tax - - 255.9
Result after tax - - 1140.0
Assets of the segment 41027.1 63 848.8 104 875.9
Segment investments in controlled entities 36.0 233.2 269.2
Other assets (not allocated to segments) 0.0 0.0 960.8
Total assets 41 063.1 64 082.0 106 105.9
Segment liabilities 60 378.9 34 237.1 94 616.0
Other liabilities (not allocated to segment) 0.0 0.0 1004.7
Equity 0.0 0.0 10 485.2
Total equity and liabilities 60 378.9 34237.1 106 105.9
Capital expenditure 333.3 190.1 523.4
Net cash flow from operating activities 3634.5 -3284.0 350.5
Net cash flow from operating activities total 3634.5 -3284.0 -127.5
Net cash flow from investment activities -83.5 -1128.4 -1211.9
Net cash flow from financial activities 113 5330 5443

(not allocated to segment)
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2014
]
Retail banking Cobrgr?l?r:; TOTAL
segment segment
Income total 1940.8 1452.7 33935
net interest income 1358.0 853.2 2211.2
net commission income 422.0 580.9 1002.9
other income/expenses 160.8 18.6 179.4
Expenses total 1136.8 677.4 1814.2
Segment result 804.0 775.3 1579.3
Impairment losses 78.7 164.7 243.4
Result after impairment losses (profit before tax) 725.3 610.6 1335.9
Income tax - - 268.0
Result after tax - - 1067.9
Assets of the segment 37 004.9 58 510.5 95515.4
Segment investments in controlled entities 315 237.7 269.2
Other assets (not allocated to segments) 0.0 0.0 957.8
Total assets 37 036.4 58 748.2 96 742.4
Segment liabilities 52 726.7 32611.2 853379
Other liabilities (not allocated to segment) 0.0 0.0 1156.7
Equity 0.0 0.0 10247.8
Total equity and liabilities 52 726.7 32611.2 96 742.4
Capital expenditure 260.9 155.4 416.3
Net cash flow from operating activities 25913 -35915 -1000.2
Net cash flow from operating activities total 25913 -3591.5 -1117.6
Net cash flow from investment activities -80.0 -54.6 -134.6
Net cash flow from financial activities 1325 4253 292.8

(not allocated to segment)
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2. Net interest income

2015 2014
Interest income
Interest on loans and receivables to other banks 62.7 93.5
Interest on loans and receivables to customers, including: 27143 2 660.2
- interest on entities from the financial sector other than banks 146.5 168.1
- interest on entities from the non-financial sector* 24472 2 338.3
- interest on entities from the government and self-government institutions’ sector 120.6 153.8
Interest on repo transactions made with customers 8.0 15.1
Interest on financial assets held for trading 25.3 23.2
Interest on loans and receivables to other banks 562.7 748.7
Interest on financial assets held to maturity 78.3 0.0
Net interest income on derivatives** 32.3 38.0
Total interest income 3483.6 3578.7
Interest expenses
Interest on deposits from other banks 40.9 58.0
Interest on deposits from customers, including: 1073.8 1283.7
- interest on entities from the financial sector other than banks 33.1 63.2
- interest on entities from the non-financial sector* 1016.6 1180.0
- interest on entities from the government and self-government institutions' sector 24.1 40.5
Interest on repo transactions made with customers 0.4 3.2
Interest on issue of debt securities 23.7 20.5
Interest on financial liabilities held for trading 1.3 2.1
Total interest expense 1140.1 13675

23435 22112

*) The Bank applies the principles of cash-flow hedge accounting for a certain portfolio of financial assets/liabilities. The
hedging strategies used are to secure the Bank against the risk of change to the future cash flows due to IR risk. For the
strategy used for the portfolio of mortgage loans denominated in a foreign currency or indexed to CHF or EUR, the change due
to IR risk and FX risk is hedged against simultaneously. The net interest income of the reporting period shows the result on
cash-flow hedge accounting of PLN 449.2 million in 2015 (PLN 563.9 million in interest income, PLN 114.7 million in interest
expense) versus PLN 322.7 million in 2014 (PLN 428.1 million in interest income, PLN 105.4 million in interest expense).The
hedge accounting strategy of the Bank has been detailed in the latter part hereof: explanatory note 39 Hedge Accounting.

**) The Net interest income on derivatives item shows the net interest income on derivatives whereto no hedge accounting
applies; it includes net interest income on IR instruments (IRS, CIRS) and interest element of FX derivatives (FX Swap, FX
Forward).

Interest income on financial assets is calculated on the basis of the net exposure amounts; i.e. the
amounts including effective impairment losses.

In 2015, the amount of PLN 40.1 million represents income on financial assets for which impairment
loss was recognised. In 2014, the amount reached PLN 39.1 million.
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3. Net commission income

2015 2014
Commission income
transaction margin on currency exchange transactions* 284.2 282.2
account maintenance fees 247.1 246.8
lending commissions 224.2 211.2
participation units distribution fees 99.1 84.3
payment and credit cards fees 66.9 150.3
insurance product offering commissions 54.8 44.8
fiduciary and custodian fees** 26.0 29.3
foreign commercial business 20.1 17.9
agency in financial instruments transactions 11.7 7.3
brokerage activity fees 3.0 5.4
other 18.8 17.9
Total comission income 1055.9 1097.4
Commission expenses
commission paid on intermediation in selling deposit products 30.5 18.1
commission paid on disclosing credit information 12.1 113
commission paid on cash handling services 11.3 10.5
commission paid on trading in securities 7.8 8.9
costs of the National Clearing House (KIR) 7.3 7.5
electronic banking services fees 7.2 7.3
brokerage activity fees 7.0 6.3
agency in financial instruments transactions 6.8 8.5
other 14.6 16.1
Total commision expenses 104.6 94.5
Net commission income 951.3 1002.9

*) Transaction margin on FX transactions covers the margin on all buy/sell transactions made with spot delivery value date or
forward delivery value date.

**) Fiduciary and custodian fees show the commissions earned on custody services, where the Bank keeps or invests assets for
their clients.
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4. Net income on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and FX result

2015 2014

Net income on financial assets and liabilities held for trading, including: -6.9 76.3
Net income on debt instruments 5.1 5.5
Net income on derivatives, including: -12.0 70.8
- Currency derivatives -46.1 41.2

- Interest rate derivatives 34.0 28.3

- Securities derivatives 0.1 1.3

FX result 88.8 13.1

Net income on financial instruments at fair value through 81.9 89.4
profit or loss and FX result . :

Net income on debt instruments includes net income on trading in treasury securities and money
market instruments (treasury bills) as well as result on fair value measurement of those instruments.
Net interest income on debt securities is presented as part of the overall interest result.

Net income on derivatives includes net income on trading and fair value measurement of IR
derivatives (FRA, IRS/CIRS, cap options), FX derivatives (swaps and options) as well as stock exchange
index options.

5. Netincome on investments

2015 2014
Dividend income 99.3 67.5
Net income on equity instruments 91.9 6.5
Net income on debt instruments 543 5.2
Impairment losses 0.0 -11.1

245.5 68.1

*) The dividend income amount encompasses PLN 82.1 million worth of the 2014 dividend received from ING Powszechne
Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. For details of dividend received, see Chapter Il. Significant events in 2015, item 9. Dividend from
ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. Company.

**) The net income on equity instruments covers the result on sale of shares of ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A.
Company of PLN 87.9 million. For details of the share purchase agreement, refer to Chapter Il. Significant events in 2015, item
10. Sale of shares of ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. Company.

6. Netincome on hadge accounting

2015 2014
Fair value hedge accounting for securities 21.8 8.6
valuation of the hedged transaction -113.2 234.5
valuation of the hedging transaction 135.0 -225.9
Cash flow hedge accounting 1.1 0.3
ineffectiveness under cash flow hedges 1.1 0.3

Net income on hedge accounting 22.9 8.9

For details of the hedge accounting applied by the Bank, refer to the subsequent part of the financial
statements, note no. 39 Hedge accounting.
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7. Netincome on other basic activities

2015 2014

Net income on the investment properties, including: 6.9 119
- income from rental of the investment property 8.9 13.1

- maintenance expenses relating to the investment property -2.6 -4.0

- valuation of investment property to fair value 0.6 2.8
Banking activity-related compensations and losses -1.6 -1.0
Net income on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets -2.1 -0.4
Impairment on other non-financial assets -0.2 -0.2
Other -4.4 2.7

L4 13.0

8. General and administrative expenses

2015 2014

Personnel expenses, including: 893.0 871.9
wages and salaries, including: 744.8 729.8
- variable remuneration programme 25.8 25.9

- ING Group’s incentive programme 1.3 1.8

- retirement benefits 1.6 2.0
employee benefits 148.2 142.1
Overheads, including: 956.8 770.8
maintenance, refurbishment and rental of buildings 240.4 255.0
cost of marketing and promotion 116.3 108.6
IT costs 82.6 95.9
consulting 68.8 68.0
material and leasing costs 46.5 62.5
obligatory Bank Guarantee Fund payments* 261.3 54.1
cash handling services 28.2 33.2
other** 112.7 93.5
Depreciation and amortisation, including: 185.2 171.5
on property, plant and equipment 104.6 100.1
on intangible assets 80.6 71.4

20350 18142

*) Besides the annual fee and the prudential fee, the amount of mandatory BGF contributions for 2015 also encompasses PLN
157.4 million worth of the mandatory contribution for payment of guaranteed funds to the depositors of Spoétdzielczy Bank
Rzemiosta i Rolnictwa in Wotomin. For details of the payment discussed, refer to Chapter II. Significant events in 2015, item 1.
Bank Guarantee Fund's resolution on the mandatory payment from the guaranteed deposits fund.

**) The other overheads for 2015 comprise PLN 6.4 million worth of the provision for the Borrower Financial Assistance Fund
contributions.
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8.1. Employee benefits
8.1.1. Variable Remuneration Programme

In 2015, the Variable Remuneration Programme initiated in 2012, was continued. The Programme is
addressed to:

» persons holding managerial positions having a material impact on the risk profile of the Group
(to satisfy the requirements under Polish Financial Supervision Authority Resolution No.
258/2011, Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 26 June
2013, Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No. 604/2014 of 04 March 2014 supplementing
Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to regulatory
technical standards with respect to qualitative and appropriate quantitative criteria to identify
categories of staff whose professional activities have a material impact on an institution's risk
profile), and

» employees displaying special potential and skills (part involving award of a financial
instrument).

Benefits are awarded to the employees covered with the Programme, based on their performance
appraisal for a given year. The Programme description and characteristics are included in Chapter IV.
Significant accounting principles in item 13.3.3. Variable Remuneration Programme benefits.

The below table presents basic information about the Programme addressed to persons holding
managerial positions having material impact on the Bank’s risk profile.

Programme 2012
Number of non- Phantorn stock - Phantom stock - Phantom stock - Stocl_( price
Value of 2 years of 3 years of median for
deferred shares - 1 year of deferral .
Number of shares held 1 uear Deferred shares (assigned in 2014 deferral deferral period from
shares (in PLN . _g total 9 ) (assigned in 2015  (assigned in 2016 10 Oct 2015
P (assigned in 2013 - - payable in . .
million) . - payable in - payable in to 20 Nov
payable in 2014) 2015) 2016) 2017) 2015
23 462 2.9 - 23 462 11723 11739 125.30
Programme 2013
Number of non- Phantorn stock - Phantom stock - Phantom stock - Stoclf price
Value of 2 years of 3 years of median for
deferred shares - 1 year of deferral -
Number of shares held 1 uear Deferred shares (assigned in 2015 deferral deferral period from
shares (in PLN . _g total 9 ) (assigned in 2016  (assigned in 2017 10 Oct 2015
P (assigned in 2014 - - payable in . .
million) . - payable in - payable in to 20 Nov
payable in 2015) 2016) 2017) 2018) 2015
31060 39 - 31060 10 337 10 354 10 369 125.30
Programme 2014
Number of non- Phantorn stock - Phantom stock - Phantom stock - Stoclf price
Value of 2 years of 3 years of median for
deferred shares - 1 year of deferral .
Number of shares held 1 uear Deferred shares (assigned in 2016 deferral deferral period from
shares (in PLN . _g total 9 ) (assigned in 2017 (assigned in 2018 10 Oct 2015
- (assigned in 2015 - - payable in ] .
million) . - payable in - payable in to 20 Nov
payable in 2016) 2017) 2018) 2019) 2015
71 348 8.9 42 839 28 509 9 485 9 506 9518 125.30
Programme 2015
Number of non- Phantorn stock - Phantom stock - Phantom stock - Stoclf price
Value of 2 years of 3 years of median for
deferred shares - 1 year of deferral .
Number of shares held 1 uear Deferred shares (assigned in 2017 deferral deferral period from
shares (in PLN . Y total 9 : (assigned in 2018  (assigned in 2019 10 Oct 2015
. (assigned in 2016 - - payable in : -
million) . - payable in - payable in to 20 Nov
payable in 2017) 2018) 2019) 2020) 2015
102 488 12.8 61 690 40798 13575 13598 13625 125.30
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8.1.2. ING Group’s ilncentive programme

To the end of 2012, the Bank participated in the long-term incentive programme of ING Group (LSPP
- Longterm Sustainable Performance Plan), formerly known as LEO (Long-term Equity Ownership).
Description of system variants is included in Chapter IV. Significant accounting principles in item
13.3.2. ING Group's long-term incentive system benefits.

As at the balance sheet date, the Bank recognises in their books the measurement of instruments
held by Bank employees. The fair value of options granted is recognised as personnel expenses (on
the other side of the balance sheet - in capitals) and is allocated throughout the vesting period.

Parameters used in the valuation model

2015 2014
min max min max
risk-free interest rate 2.02% 4.62% 2.02% 4.62%
expected exercise term 5 years 9 years 5 years 9 years
current share price 2.9 EUR 26.05 EUR 2.9 EUR 26.05 EUR
expected volatility of share certificates 25% 84% 25% 84%
expected dividends 0.94% 8.99% 0.94% 8.99%

Changes in option rights outstanding

Options outstanding Weighted average exercise

(in numbers) price (in euros)

2015 2014 2015 2014
Opening balance 450 453 653 065 16.64 14.08
transferred -9716 -104 638 17.11 7.10
exwercised 14 589 57 052 6.01 6.23
forfeited 733 6761 21.33 12.68
expired 68 102 34161 18.01 15.16
Closing balance 357 313 450 453 16.79 16.64

As at 31 December 2015, total options outstanding covered 14,699 options relating to equity-settled
share-based payment arrangements and 342,614 options relating to cash-settled share-based
payment arrangements (as at 31 December 2014: 75,066 and 375,387 respectively).

The range of exercise prices and weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding
and exercisable are presented in the below table:

2015
Options Weighted
Options Weighted average Weighted excercisable Weighted average  average exercise
Range of exercise  outstanding as remaining average exercise as at 31 Dec remaining price
prices (in EUR) at 31 Dec 2015 contractual life price (in EUR) 2015 contractual life (in EUR)
0.00-5.00 40 418 3.22 2.90 40 418 3.22 2.90
5.00 - 10.00 60 496 4.21 7.35 60 496 421 7.35
10.00 - 15.00 4145 2.72 14.36 4145 2.72 14.36
15.00 - 20.00 109 431 2.20 16.66 109 431 2.20 16.66
20.00 - 25.00 84777 1.22 24.72 84777 1.22 24.72
25.00 - 30.00 58 046 0.23 25.16 58 046 0.23 25.16

357 313 357 313
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2014
- ]
Options Weighted
Options Weighted average Weighted excercisable Weighted average ~ average exercise
Range of exercise  outstanding as remaining average exercise as at 31 Dec remaining price
prices (in EUR) at 31 Dec 2014 contractual life price (in EUR) 2014 contractual life (in EUR)
0.00-5.00 42 667 4.22 2.90 42 667 4.22 2.90
5.00 - 10.00 78 348 5.21 7.35 78 348 521 7.35
10.00 - 15.00 4 145 3.72 14.36 4 145 3.72 14.36
15.00 - 20.00 174 010 2.16 17.09 174010 2.16 17.09
20.00 - 25.00 88 781 2.21 24.68 88781 2.21 24.68
25.00 - 30.00 62 502 1.23 25.16 62 502 1.23 25.16
450 453 450 453

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding and exercisable as at 31 December 2015 was
EUR 694,522 versus EUR 611,000 as at 31 December 2014.

9. Impairment losses and provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities

2015 2014
Loans and other receivables
Impairment losses on loans and other receivables 843.6 569.6
Reversed impairment losses on loans and other receivables -638.7 -330.2
Net impairment losses on loans and other receivables, including: 204.9 239.4
- losses on loans and other receivables with evidence of impairment 199.3 234.5
- losses on loans and other receivables with no evidence of impairment (IBNR) 5.6 4.9
Financial assets held to maturity
Increase in financial assets held to maturity 0.6 0.0
Reversed financial assets held to maturity 0.0 0.0
Net financial assets held to maturity,including: 0.6 0.0
-on the portfolio with no evidence of impairment (IBNR) 0.6 0.0
Provisions for off-balance liabilities
Increase in provisions for off-balance liabilities 20.8 15.8
Reversed provision for off-balance sheet liabilities -13.5 -11.8
Net provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities, including: 7.3 4.0
- on the portfolio with evidence of impairment 5.4 1.8
- on the portfolio with no evidence of impairment (IBNR) 19 2.2
Total increase in impairment losses and provisions 865.0 585.4
Total reversed impairment losses and provisions -652.2 -342.0

Net impairment losses and provisions for off-balance sheet liabilities

The figures recognised under the item Reversed impairment losses on loans and other receivables
include, among other things, the previously derecognised of repayments of receivables which in
2015 totalled PLN 8.9 million compared with PLN 5.4 million in 2014.
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Impairment losses on loans and other receivables by client sector

2015 2014
Impairment losses on loans and other receivables, including: 843.6 569.6
banks 0.1 0.3
entities from the financial sector other than banks 0.4 0.4
entities from the non-financial sector 842.9 568.5
entities from the government and self-government institutions’ sector 0.2 0.4
Reversed impairment losses on loans and other receivables, including: -638.7 -330.2
banks -0.6 -0.3
entities from the financial sector other than banks -0.3 -0.3
entities from the non-financial sector -637.2 -329.3
entities from the government and self-government institutions’ sector -0.6 -0.3
Net impairment losses on loans and other receivables, including: 204.9 239.4
banks -0.5 0.0
entities from the financial sector other than banks 0.1 0.1
entities from the non-financial sector 205.7 239.2
entities from the government and self-government institutions’ sector -0.4 0.1

Impairment losses on loans and other receivables by client segment

2015 2014
Impairment losses on loans and other receivables, including: 843.6 569.6
corporate banking 489.5 340.2
retail banking 354.1 229.4
Reversed impairment losses on loans and other receivables, including: -638.7 -330.2
corporate banking -354.4 -179.5
retail banking -284.3 -150.7
Net impairment losses on loans and other receivables, including: 204.9 239.4
corporate banking 135.1 160.7
retail banking 69.8 78.7
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10. Income tax

Income tax recognised in the income statement

2015 2014
Current tax, including: 248.2 304.0
Current year 213.7 311.4
Adjustment of last-year tax settlement 34.5 -7.4
Deferred tax, including: 7.7 -36.0
Recognised and reversed temporary differences 7.7 -36.0

Total income tax recognised in the income statement

Effective tax rate calculation

2015 2014
A. Profit before tax 13959 13359
B. 19% of profit before tax 265.2 253.8
C. Increases - non-deductible expenses, including: 19.6 27.1
expenses due to loan and non-loan receivables written off 5.7 5.0
provisions for disputable debt claims and other assets 2.2 3.5
State Fund for Rehabilitation of Disabled Persons (PFRON) payments 1.4 1.4
impairment on receivables in the part not covered with the deferred tax 2.9 1.6
representation expenses 0.9 0.7
thin capitalisation 0.4 0.7
tax loss on the sale of debt 1.0 9.1
other 51 51
D. Decreases - tax exempt income, including:: 28.9 12.9
dividends received 17.8 121
release of provisions for disputable debt claims 2.7 0.7
income exempt due to the entity 0.0 0.1
adjustment of previous year tax settlement 8.4 0.0
other 0.0 0.0
E. Income tax from the income statement (B+C-D) 255.9 268.0
Effective tax rate (E: A) 18.33% 20.06%

The effective tax rate deviation in 2015 below 19% was substantially impacted by the dividend paid
out to the Bank by ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. (ING PTE) totalling PLN 82.1 million
that is exempted from income tax pursuant to Article 22 section 4 of the Corporate Income Tax Act.

The following developments caused the effective tax rate to increase in 2014:

> Conclusion in H1 2014 of the letter of intent concerning sale of shares held by ING Bank Slgski
S.A. in the dffiliated entity, ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. (ING PTE), and due
to a change of intent concerning the shares held - provisioning for deferred tax in the
amount of PLN 13.2 million.

» Non-tax loss incurred on sale of debt claims to one of the commercial banking clients
(income tax increase of PLN 9.1 million).
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11. Earnings per ordinary share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per one share of the parent company for 2015 were calculated based on net profit of
PLN 1,140.0 million (in 2014, it was PLN 1,067.9 million) and weighted average number of ordinary
shares at the end 2015 and 2014 being 130,100,000.

2015 2014
Net profit attributable to ING Bank Slgski S.A. shareholders 1140.0 1067.9
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 130 100 000 130 100 000
Earnings per ordinary share (in PLN) 8.76 8.21

Diluted earnings per share

In 2015 as well as in 2014, there were no factors that would dilute the profit per one share. In the
described periods, ING Bank Slgski S.A. issued neither bonds convertible to shares nor options for
shares. The share capital comprises ordinary shares only (no preference shares). Therefore, the
diluted earnings per share are the same as the underlying profit per share.

12. Dividends paid/proposed

By the approval date hereof, the Management Board of ING Bank Slgski S.A. did not take a decision on
the 2015 profit distribution proposal to be recommended to the General Meeting.

On 31 March 2015, the General Meeting passed a resolution regarding dividend payout for 2014,
whereby the Bank paid out the dividend for 2014 totalling PLN 520.4 million (PLN 4.0 gross per share).
On 20 April 2014, the shareholders of record became entitled to dividend payout; the dividend was
paid out on 03 June 2015.

13. Cash in hand and balances with the Central Bank

2015 2014
Cash in hand 1102.7 1097.3
Balances with the Central Bank 2 487.0 4233.4
Total 3589.7 5 330.7

The Bank maintains a mandatory provision - 3.5% of the value of deposits received by the Bank - in
its current account kept with the National Bank of Poland.

The arithmetic mean of balances of the mandatory reserve that the Bank

is obliged to maintain during a given period in the current account with NBP amounts to:
» PLN 3,109.5 million for the period from 31 December 2015 to 1 February 2016, and
» PLN 2,597.8 million for the period from 31 December 2014 to 30 January 2015.

The Bank can avail itself of the credit line from the National Bank of Poland against the pledge on T-
securities. As at 31 December 2015, the line was PLN 15,200.0 million versus PLN 13,180.6 million as
at 31 December 2014.
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14. Loans and receivables to other banks

2015 2014

Current accounts 820.7 963.4
Interbank deposits 59.4 125.8
Loans and advances 133.1 67.2
Reverse repo transactions 0.0 664.9
Total (gross) 1013.2 1821.3
Impairment losses, including: -0.1 0.0
- concerning loans and advances -0.1 0.0
Total (net) 1013.1 1821.3

Loans and receivables to other banks by maturity

2015 2014
up to 1 month 856.9 1638.7
over 1 month and up to 3 months 45.9 136.4
over 3 months and up to 1 year 68.9 31.8
over 1 year and up to 5 years 41.1 14.4
over 5 years 0.4 0.0

Total (gross) 1013.2 1821.3

15. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading

2015 2014

Debt instruments, including: 964.3 1409.8
- Treasury bonds 964.3 1409.8
Transactions with the buy-back commitment 162.8 447.0
Total financial assets held for trading 1127.1 1856.8

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss by maturity

2015 2014
up to 1 month 268.0 453.2
over 1 month and up to 3 months 175.6 38.4
over 3 months and up to 1 year 400.4 12239
over 1 year and up to 5 years 283.1 141.3
Total 1127.1 1 856.8

Interest income on financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the net
interest income. Profits and losses due to movements in fair value of the said assets are recognised
in item Net income on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and FX result.
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16. Valuation of derivatives

The below table shows face values for derivatives whose valuation is presented on the assets side
(positive valuation) and liabilities side (negative valuation) of the Bank’s statement of financial
position.

Fair value measurement Face value of instruments
2015 of derivatives with the remaining maturity
t03 over3
Assets Liabilities upto monthsand  over 1 year TOTAL
months
up to 1 year

Interest rate derivatives, including: 1698.9 1707.1 27070.8 714831 1232187 221772.6
Forward rate agreements (FRA) 131 16.8 21425.0 48150.8 1350.0 70925.8
Interest rate swaps (IRS) 1678.2 1682.7 5645.8 224891 1177940  145928.9
CAP options 76 76 0.0 843.2 4074.7 4917.9
FX derivatives, including: 289.7 294.0 31749.6 10276.2 6150.3 48176.1
FX contracts (swap, forward) 167.3 140.2 30668.4 9401.1 2093.0 42162.5
CIRS 53.3 73.7 0.0 0.0 965.7 965.7
Currency options (purchased) 67.3 0.0 4814 4822 1570.2 2533.8
Currency options (sold) 1.8 80.1 599.8 392.9 15214 25141
Current off-balance sheet transactions, including: 0.7 0.2 5207.7 0.0 0.0 5207.7
FX operations 0.3 0.2 464.9 - - 464.9
Securities operations 0.4 0.0 47428 - - 4742.8
Fair value measurement of other financial
. 1.6 15 - - - -
instruments

1990.9 2002.8 64 028.1 81759.3 129369.0 275156.4

The amount of fair value measurement of derivatives includes the credit value adjustment for
counterparty insolvency(CVA) and debt value adjustment for Bank insolvency (DVA).

Fair value measurement Face value of instruments
2014 of derivatives with the remaining maturity
t03 over3
Assets Liabilities up monthsand  over 1 year TOTAL
months
up to 1 year

Interest rate derivatives, including: 21547 2164.1 321823 62 910.7 808559 1759489
Forward rate agreements (FRA) 435 45.7 22628.0 38400.0 5675.0 66 703.0
Interest rate swaps (IRS) 2107.6 2114.8 9263.8 24041.3 719186  105223.7
CAP options 3.6 3.6 290.5 469.4 32623 4022.2
FX derivatives, including: 253.3 353.6 25080.3 8558.7 2667.6 36 306.6
FX contracts (swap, forward) 207.5 207.3 24 4442 7979.7 1455.4 33879.3
CIRS 24.1 107.9 0.0 0.0 839.7 839.7
Currency options (purchased) 217 0.0 329.1 135.9 1329 597.9
Currency options (sold) 0.0 38.4 307.0 4431 239.6 989.7
Current off-balance sheet transactions, including: 1.6 1.6 4 895.0 0.0 0.0 4 895.0
FX operations 13 1.6 1954.8 - - 1954.8
Securities operations 0.3 0.0 2940.2 - - 2940.2
Stock market derivatives, including: 0.0 0.0 11.4 12.8 0.0 24.2
Stock market options (purchased) 0.0 0.0 5.7 6.4 0.0 121
Stock market options (sold) 0.0 0.0 5.7 6.4 0.0 121
Fair value measurement of other financial
. 2.1 2.0 - - - -
instruments

24117 62 169.0 714822 83523.5 2171747
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Embedded derivatives

At the end of 2015 and 2014, the Bank had PLN deposits with embedded derivatives. Embedded
instruments are FX options. As at 31 December 2015, embedded derivatives were worth PLN +0.8
mln million versus PLN +0.5 million as at 31 December 2014.

17. Investments

2015 2014

Available-for-sale financial assets, including: 20678.0 22 828.6
- fair value hedge-hedged items 35155 4095.9
Financial assets held to maturity 2 800.7 0.0
Total 23 478.7 22 828.6

Fair value hedge-hedged items

2015 2014

Fixed rate debt instruments, including: 35155 4 095.9
- Treasury bonds 3515.5 3726.0

- BGK bonds 0.0 369.9
Total 3515.5 4095.9

For details of the hedge accounting applied by the Bank, refer to note no. 39 Hedge accounting.

17.1. Available-for-sale financial assets

2015 2014

Debt securities, including: 20 494.9 22 815.3
Fixed rate debt instruments, including: 8 050.9 12 345.9
- Treasury bonds 7551.1 10 149.1

- NBP bills 499.8 499.9

- BGK bonds 0.0 1696.9
Floating rate debt instruments, including: 12 444.0 10 469.4
- Treasury bonds 12 444.0 10 469.4
Total debt instruments, including: 20 4949 22 815.3
- listed instruments 19995.1 22 3154

- unlisted instruments 499.8 499.9
Equity instruments, including 183.1 13.3
- Equity instruments at cost 5.2 19.4

- Marked to market 177.9 0.0

- Impairment 0.0 -6.1
Equity instruments - carrying amount, including: 183.1 13.3
- listed instruments 0.0 8.4

- unlisted instruments 183.1 4.9

Total available-for-sale financial assets
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The item Equity Instruments include stocks and shares of number of entities not quoted on the stock
exchange which are not presented at fair value. The carrying amount encompasses PLN 177.9 million
worth of shares of Visa Europe Limited, priced on the basis of the foreseeable allocation of
settlement of the Visa Europe Limited takeover by Visa Inc. For transaction details, refer to Chapter I.
Significant events in 2015, item 2. Impact of Visa Europe takeover by Visa Inc. transaction. Stocks and
shares of number of entities the Group do not present at fair value. It is difficult or impossible to
determine the fair value due to absence of an active market for those instruments. The Group
holdssome of shares on account of their business (KIR, SWIFT, BIK, PSP). In the Group opinion the best
measure of their value is the purchase price.

Available-for-sale financial assets by maturity

2015 2014
up to 1 month 499.8 544.6
over 3 months and up to 1 year 274.8 3199.7
over 1 year and up to 5 years 13969.1 111749
over 5 years 59343 7909.4
Total 20678.0 22 828.6

Changes in available-for-sale financial assets

2015 2014
Opening balance 22 828.6 19 492.9
Increases, including: 82 519.1 85 149.5
purchase of debt securities 81 695.6 83 867.3
increase in the value of securities 823.2 1279.9
purchase of shares in other parties 0.3 2.3
Decreases, including: 84 669.7 81813.8
sales of debt securities 3577.2 8299.2
redemption of debt securities 78 559.0 727235
decrease in the value of securities 811.7 777.4
{gctlszslgfieclgfltzrjni(flfjr?ttgsSgl;{fl’gl?s from the available-for-sale portfolio 1713.3 0.0
sale of shares in other parties 8.5 13.7
Closing balance 20678.0 22 828.6

In 2015, the Bank sold a portion of shares of 1 company from their investment portfolio. The net
income on sale of those shares was PLN +4.0 million. To compare, in 2014, the Bank sold shares of 1
companies from their investment portfolio. The net income on sale of those shares was PLN +6.5
million.
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17.2. Financial assets held-to-maturity

2015 2014

Fixed rate debt instruments, including: 2 643.8 0.0
- Treasury bonds 987.1 0.0

- BGK bonds 1656.7 0.0
Floating rate debt instruments, including: 156.9 0.0
- Treasury bonds 156.9 0.0
Total debt instruments, including: 2 800.7 0.0
- listed instruments 2 800.7 0.0
Total financial assets held to maturity 2 800.7 0.0

In 2015 the Bank reclassified the part of debt securities from the available-for-sale portfolio to the
held-to-maturity portfolio. Detailed disclosure about reclassification, refer to the note no. 17.3.

Financial assets held-to-maturity by maturity

2015 2014
over 1 year and up to 5 years 1995.4 0.0
over 5 years 805.3 0.0
Total 2 800.7 (0X0)

Changes in assets held-to-maturity

2015 2014
Opening balance 0.0 0.0
Increases, including: 2934.1 0.0
reclassification of dept securitigs from the available-for-sale portfolio 17133 0.0
to the held-to-maturity portfolio
purchase of debt securities 1138.6 0.0
Interest accrued 82.2 0.0
Decreases, including: 133.4 0.0
Interest paid 87.6 0.0
depreciation valuation detained in the revaluation reserve 40.2 0.0
amortization of discount / premium 5.0 0.0
impairment losses 0.6 0.0
Closing balance 2 800.7 (0 X0
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17.3. Reclassification of debt securities

The Group presents the disclosures in connection with two reclassification of securities made in 2008
and 2015.

17.3.1. Reclassification in 2015

In 2015, the Bank reclassified a portion of debt securities (T-bonds) from the available-for-sale
financial assets to the financial assets held to maturity. Reclassification aimed at making the Bank’s
capital less sensitive to the change in the fair value of securities.

As a result, the rules of debt securities valuation were changed from fair-value measurement to
measurement at amortised cost. The fair value of debt securities of PLN 1,713.3 million as at the
reclassification date was their new amortized cost.

17.3.2. Reclassification in 2008

In 2008, the Bank reclassified a portion of debt securities from the available-for-sale financial assets
to the loans and other receivables category.

The reason for reclassification was the absence of or inactiveness of the market, which in the opinion
of the Bank causes the above securities to match the definition of loans and receivables according to
IAS, namely they “are financial assets other than derivatives, with the determined or possible to
determine payments, and which are not quoted on active market”, while the Bank’s intention
pertaining thereto, i.e. Bank’s intention and possibility to hold them in a foreseeable future, did not
change.

The reclassification resulted in a change in the basis of the debt securities measurement, that is from
measurement at fair value to measurement at amortised cost. Fair value of debt securities as of
reclassification date constituted their new amortised cost.

Debt securities reclassified from available-for-sale category to loans and receivables

2015 2014

Name of securiti Reclassification fair value as fair value as
Y date atthe carrying fairvalue atthe carrying fair value
reclassification amount Y€ reclassification amount u

date date
T-eurobonds 01.10.2008 12429 1796.6 17473 12429 1855.0 2101.7
Corporate bonds 19.12.2008 6.7 6.4 6.1 8.9 8.5 8.1
Municipal bonds 19.12.2008 12.8 12.8 12.4 20.1 20.5 20.4

1262.4 1815.8 1765.8

Upon reclassification, the above-named securities are presented in the financial statements under
the item Loans and other receivables to customers.

T-bonds denominated in EUR (T-eurobonds) classified as at their purchase date to the available-for-
sale financial assets were the base instruments secured in the fair value hedge accounting against
the interest rate risk. Upon reclassification, the original strategy of hedging the securities from the
available-for-sale portfolio was closed. Due to the fact that the intention of the Bank was to sustain
the hedging connection, from the reclassification date a new hedging strategy was started, i.e. the
strategy which hedged the fair value against the interest rate risk of the securities classified to loans
and other receivables category.
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Fair value of gain or loss which would be presented in revaluation reserve once reclassification
is not performed

. Fair value recognised in equity
Name of security

2015 2014
T-eurobonds -49.3 246.7
Corporate bonds -0.4 -0.5
Municipal bonds -0.3 -0.1
Total -50.0 246.1

Had the above securities not been re-classified to the category of loans and other receivables but left
in the category of available-for-sale financial assets, the amounts of measurement at fair value
would have been recognised in full in the revaluation reserve. The above figures have been estimated
without including the impact that the further application of the fair value hedge accounting would
have on the income statement or the capitals because in the opinion of the Bank such calculations
would be prone to error and would rely on hypothetical assumptions that would be difficult to verify.

Costs and revenues included in the income statement

2015

carrying amount

. accrued interest cm:iortised depreciation of the . of hedged

Name of security discount/ . instruments
(coupon) . revaluation reserve .

premium in FVH strategy

adjustment

T-eurobonds 77.4 -2.8 19 -57.6

Corporate bonds 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.0

Municipal bonds 0.4 0.0 0.0 0.0

Total 78.0 -2.8 1.9 -57.6

2014

carrying amount

. amortised . of hedged

. accrued interest . depreciation of the .
Name of security (coupon) discount/ revaluation reserve instruments
P premium in FVH strategy
adjustment
T-eurobonds 77.5 -2.8 1.9 20.7
Corporate bonds 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0
Municipal bonds 0.7 0.1 -0.1 0.0
Total 78.5 -2.7 1.8 A\

*) measurement due to the hedged interest rate risk
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18. Assets securing liabilities

Market value of assets securing liabilities

2015 2014
From the portfolio of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss:
- treasu_rg bonds collateralising the liopilities due to securities sold with buy-back 60.1 56.3
commitment (sell-buy-back transactions)
From the portfolio of available-for-sale financial assets:
- treasury bonds constituting collateral to the Bank Guarantee Fund 507.2 428.3
éﬁ(;;lérgnt)lﬁr\;gzt%)!zieégging the loan received by the subsidiary of the 203.8 290.0
- French government bonds to hedge settlements with the LCH 507.5 258.4
- treasury bonds collateralising the Bank debt to subsidiary 0.0 41.4
- treasury bonds collateralising the liabilities due to securities sold with buy-back 424 293

commitment (sell-buy-back transactions)

Securities are pledged on the terms provided for by:
» the Banking Guarantee Fund Act (Journal of Laws 84 of 2009, item 711),
» Commercial Companies and Partnerships Code, Article 495 (Journal of Laws of 2000, no. 94,
item 1037 as amended),
» agreements, and
> the basis of the transaction.

The carrying amount of liabilities from repurchase transactions (sell-buy-back and repo) is presented
in the following notes:

» note 27 Liabilities due to other banks
> note 28 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
» note 30 Repurchase transactions made with customers.

Besides the instruments indicated herein, assets limited as to use also include the mandatory
provision which the Bank has to maintain in the current account with NBP. For mandatory provision
details, see note no. 13 Cash in hand and balances with the Central Bank.

The majority of sell-buy-back/repo transactions are effected assuming the option of legal transfer of
ownership of the securities transacted. The above indicates that the counterparty who purchased
ownership of securities can still sell them back or pledge them in accordance with the generally
adopted market practice.

Securities not recognised as the Bank’s assets accepted as collateral for liabilities under repo
transactions

The market value of securities under buy-sell-back / reverse repo transactions totalled PLN 1,507.1
million as at 31 December 2015, as compared with PLN 1,204.9 million as at 31 December 2014.

The majority of buy-sell-back/reverse repo transactions are effected assuming the option of legal
transfer of ownership of the securities transacted. The above indicates that the securities can be still
sold back or that a pledge can be established thereon in accordance with the generally adopted
market practice.

ING
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19. Derivative hedge instruments

Positive valuation

2015 2014

Balance sheet valuation of instruments hedging cash flows, including: 2 454.6 2 983.4
- Interest Rate Swap 2 453.3 2981.0

- Cross Currency Swap 1.3 2.4
Balance sheet valuation of instruments hedging the fair value of securities, including: 0.2 0.4
- Interest Rate Swap 0.2 0.4
Total 2 4548 2 983.8

Negative valuation

2015 2014

Balance sheet valuation of instruments hedging cash flows, including: 1020.6 1038.4
- Interest Rate Swap 871.6 1001.4

- Cross Currency Swap 149.0 37.0
Balance sheet valuation of instruments hedging the fair value of securities, including: 810.3 994 .4
- Interest Rate Swap 810.3 994.4
Total 1830.9 2032.8

Positive amounts are presented under Derivative hedge instruments in assets whereas negative
valuation is presented under Derivative hedge instruments in liabilities in the statement of financial
position.

For details of the hedge accounting applied by the Bank, refer tonote no. 39 Hedge accounting.
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20. Loans and receivables to customers

20.1. Customer loan portfolio

2015 2014
Customer loan portfolio, including: 67 157.8 55587.3
Loans and advances 63 998.7 52 815.6
Corporate and municipal bonds 3159.1 2771.7
Other receivables, including: 3913.6 3984.4
T-eurobonds 3 838.6 39239
Other 75.0 60.5
Total loans and receivables to customers (gross) 71 071.4 59 571.7
Impairment losses (including IBNR), including: -1 438.0 -1 619.6
concerning customer loan portfolio, including: -1437.0 -1613.9
concerning loans and advances -1333.5 -1608.3
concerning debt securities (corporate and municipal bonds) -103.5 -5.6
concerning other receivables, including: -1.0 -5.7
concerning T-eurobonds -0.5 -0.5
other -0.5 -5.2
Total loans and receivables to customers (net), including: 69 633.4 57 952.1
to entities from the financial sector other than banks 8 043.6 6 098.2
to entities from the non-financial sector 53867.1 44 130.4
to entities from the government and self-government institutions’ sector 7722.7 77235

Loans and other receivables to entities from the financial sector other than banks

2015 2014

Loans and advances, including: 7 590.5 6 049.1
- in the current account 1993.2 1805.0

- term ones 5597.3 42441
Debt securities (notes) 384.5 0.0
Other receivables 69.3 50.2
Total (gross) 8 044.3 6 099.3
Impairment losses (including IBNR), including: -0.7 -1.1
concerning loans and advances -0.6 -1.1
concerning debt securities -0.1 0.0
Total (net) 8 043.6 6 098.2
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Loans and other receivables to entities from the non-financial sector

Business entities, including:
Loans and advances, including:
- in the current account
- term ones
Debt securities (corporate bonds i notes)

Other receivables

Households, including:

Loans and advances, including:
- in the current account
- term ones

Other receivables

Total (gross)

Impairment losses (including IBNR), including:
Impairment losses, including:
Business entities, including:
- concerning loans and advances
- concerning debt securities
- concerning other receivables
Households, including:

- concerning loans and advances

Total (net)

2015

28 097.0
26 589.7
7 000.3
19 589.4
15021
5.2

27 205.9
27 205.4
1632.6
25572.8
0.5

55 302.9

-1435.8
-882.8
-779.7
-103.1

0.0
-553.0
-552.5

-0.5

53 867.1

2014

23 266.3
21592.4
57242
15 868.2
1664.1
9.8

22 481.4
22 480.9
1542.6
20938.3
0.5

45 747.7

-1617.3
-1020.5
-1010.2
-5.6

-4.7
-596.8
-596.3
-0.5

44 130.4

Loans and other receivables to entities from the government and self-government institutions’ sector

Loans and advances, including:

- in the current account

- term ones
Debt securities (municipal bonds)
T-eurobonds
Total (gross)
Impairment losses (including IBNR), including::
concerning loans and advances
concerning debt securities (municipal bonds)
concerning T-eurobonds
Total (net)

2015
2613.1
6.7

2 606.4
12725
3838.6
77242
-1.5
-0.7
-0.3
-0.5
7722.7

2014

2 693.2
6.8

2 686.4
1107.6
39239
77247
-1.2
-0.7
0.0
-0.5
7723.5

In 2008, the Bank reclassified a portion of the debt securities portfolio from available-for-sale
financial assets to loans and other receivables category. The said securities included, but were not
limited to, T-bonds (eurobonds) and corporate and municipal bonds that after reclassification are
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presented herein. T-bonds are hedged against IR risk under the fair value hedge accounting. Specific
disclosures on reclassification are presented in note no. 17.3.

Loans and receivables to customers by maturity

2015 2014
up to 1 month 12 545.0 11229.2
over 1 month and up to 3 months 2 086.6 1604.9
over 3 months and up to 1 year 8023.3 57245
over 1 year and up to 5 years 25558.8 20 324.6
over 5 years 21852.1 19 470.9
overdue 1005.6 1217.6
Total 71071.4 59571.7

Fair value hedge-hedged items

The below table presents value of securities classified to the category of loans and other receivables
and hedged under FVH accounting.

2015 2014

Fixed rate debt instruments, including: 3838.6 39239
- T-eurobonds 3838.6 3923.9
Total 3838.6 3923.9

For details of the hedge accounting applied by the Bank, refer to the subsequent part of the report,
note no. 39 Hedge accounting.
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Customer loan portfolio by client segment

2015 2014

Gross value, including: 67 157.8 55587.3
Corporate banking segment, including: 41 040.6 33 844.7
- loans and advances 378815 31073.0

- corporate and municipal debt securities 3159.1 27717
Retail banking segment, including: 26117.2 21742.6
- mortgages 20294.5 16 680.8

- other loans and advances 5822.7 5061.8

Impairment losses (including IBNR), including:

Corporate banking segment, including: -922.0 -1047.6
- loans and advances -818.5 -1042.0
- corporate and municipal debt securities -103.5 -5.6
Retail banking segment, including: -515.0 -566.3
- mortgages -197.1 -173.3
- other loans and advances -317.9 -393.0
Net value, including: 65 720.8 53973.4
Corporate banking segment, including: 40118.6 327971
- loans and advances 37 063.0 30031.0
- corporate and municipal debt securities 3055.6 2766.1
Retail banking segment, including: 25602.2 21176.3
- mortgages 20097.4 16 507.5
- other loans and advances 5504.8 4 668.8
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20.2. Quality of customer loan portfolio

Customer loan portfolio division by impairment condition and impairment loss estimation method

2015 2014
Corporate banking segment
Gross value, including: 41 040.6 33 844.7
unimpaired (IBNR*) 39 680.9 32 524.2
impaired, including: 1359.7 1320.5
- measured individually (ISFA*) 11455 1080.8
- measured as the portfolio (INSFA*) 214.2 239.7
Impairment losses, including: -922.0 -1 047.6
unimpaired (IBNR*) -72.0 -72.6
impaired, including: -850.0 -975.0
- measured individually (ISFA*) -687.6 -795.0
- measured as the portfolio (INSFA*) -162.4 -180.0
Net value, including: 40118.6 32797.1
unimpaired (IBNR*) 39 608.9 32 451.6
impaired, including: 509.7 345.5
- measured individually (ISFA*) 457.9 285.8
- measured as the portfolio (INSFA*) 51.8 59.7
Retail banking segment
Gross value, including: 26117.2 21742.6
unimpaired (IBNR) 25579.1 21164.6
impaired 538.1 578.0
Impairment losses, including: -515.0 -566.3
unimpaired (IBNR*) -101.4 -87.6
impaired -413.6 -478.7
Net value, including: 25 602.2 21176.3
unimpaired (IBNR) 25 477.7 21077.0
impaired 124.5 99.3
Total gross value, including: 67 157.8 55587.3
unimpaired (IBNR) portfolio 65 260.0 53 688.8
impaired portfolio 1897.8 1898.5
Total impairment losses, including:
unimpaired (IBNR) portfolio -173.4 -160.2
impaired portfolio -1263.6 -1 453.7
Total net value, including: 65 720.8 53973.4
unimpaired (IBNR) portfolio 65 086.6 53528.6
impaired portfolio 634.2 4448

*) IBNR - Incurred But Not Reported; ISFA - Individually Significant Financial Assets; INSFA - Individually Non- Significant

Financial Assets
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Receivable sale
In 2015 the Bank made some receivables sale transaction:

» 0On 14 May 2015, the Bank sold portfolio of corporate receivables recognized as impaired loans or
loans written off the balance sheet in full. The total amount of receivables sold under the
agreement equalled PLN 265.6 million (principal and interest). The positive transaction impact on
the Bank's risk costs was PLN 7.0 million. As a consequence of the agreement described, the Bank
decreased its non-performing loans portfolio by PLN 191.7 million,

» 0n 08 July 2015, the Bank concluded the agreement on the sale of the portfolio, mainly of retail
receivables recognised as impaired loans or written off the balance sheet in full. The total
amount of the receivables sold under the agreement equalled PLN 253.4 million (principal and
interest). The positive impact of the transaction on the Bank’s risk costs was PLN 21 million. As
a consequence of the said agreement, the Bank decreased its non-performing loans portfolio by
PLN 139.4 million,

» 0On 23 July 2015, the Bnak concluded an agreement on the sale of a portion of corporate
receivables from the impaired portfolio. The impact of the transaction on the Bank's gross
income was PLN 9 million.

In 2014, the Bank sold some debt from the portfolio of corporate receivables. The total amount of
receivables sold under the agreement equalled USD 29.3 million (principal and interest); they are fully
covered with impairment losses. As a consequence of the agreement described herein, the Bank
reduced their non-performing loans portfolio by USD 29.1 million.

Repayment security

In line with the lending policy, the Bank accepts collateral to secure repayment of the loans extended
in the form of blocked borrower’s account funds and the borrower’s assets. More information about
collaterals is presented in the part "Risk management at ING Bank Slgski S.A.", in chapter | Credit risk
management, in item 7.4. Repayment security and other forms of credit risk mitigation.

20.2. Changes in impairment losses concerning customer loan portfolio

2015 2014
Opening balance 1613.9 1443.4
Movements in impairment losses, including: -176.9 170.5
recognised during the period 843.6 569.5
reversed during the period -638.7 -330.2
receivables written off * -401.9 -74.8
amounts recovered from loans previously written off 8.9 55
unwinding interest 14.3 8.8
other -3.1 -8.3
Closing balance 1437.0 1613.9

*) In 2015, the amount of written-off receivables covered PLN-371.3 million worth (PLN-47.5 million in 2014) of redemptions
under the sale transactions of receivables discussed in item 20.2.
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Movements in impairment losses concerning customer loan portfolio by client segment

2015
Corporate banking segment Retail banking segment
other loans TOTAL
loans and bonds TOTAL  mortgages and TOTAL
advances
advances

Opening balance 1042.0 5.6 1047.6 1733 393.0 566.3 1613.9
Movements in impairment losses, including: -223.5 97.9 -125.6 23.8 -75.1 -51.3 -176.9
recognised and reversed during the period 40.6 94.5 135.1 25.6 44.2 69.8 204.9
receivables written off -265.3 0.0 -265.3 -4.5 -132.1 -136.6 -401.9
amounts recovered from loans previously written off 2.0 0.0 2.0 0.2 6.7 6.9 8.9
unwinding interest 5.1 1.6 6.7 1.2 6.4 7.6 14.3
other -5.9 18 -4.1 13 -0.3 1.0 -31

Closing balance

2014
- ]
Corporate banking segment Retail banking segment
loans and bonds TOTAL  mortgages Otherlog:(j TOTAL TOTAL
advances advances
Opening balance 955.9 0.8 956.7 137.1 349.6 486.7 1443.4
Movements in impairment losses, including: 86.1 4.8 90.9 36.2 43.4 79.6 170.5
recognised and reversed during the period 155.9 4.8 160.7 36.6 42.0 78.6 239.3
receivables written off -68.8 0.0 -68.8 -0.9 -5.1 -6.0 -74.8
amounts recovered from loans previously written off 0.8 0.0 0.8 0.2 4.5 4.7 5.5
unwinding interest -0.2 0.0 -0.2 0.1 8.9 9.0 8.8
other -16 0.0 -1.6 0.2 -6.9 -6.7 -8.3

Closing balance 1047.6

21. Receivables from customers due to repo transactions

The Bank has been presenting customer receivables under reverse repo and buy-sell-back
transactions in a separate item of the statement of financial position. Such presentation is to ensure
separate recognition of highly volatile assets measured at amortised cost from stable assets.

Reverse repo/ buy-sell-back transactions (purchase of financial instruments to be sold back in the
future at the same price plus interest determined upfront) are used as a liquidity management tool
to deposit cash surplus short-term.

2015 2014
Receivables from customers due to repo transactions 1354.4 106.6
Total 1354.4 106.6
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22. Investments in controlled entities

The Bank has shares in subsidiares and associated entities:

Bank's percentage Carrying amount of shares
Name of entity Type of capital link share in the (atcost)

business's equity 2015 2014
ING Securities S.A. subsidiary 100.00% 30.2 30.2
ING ABL Polska S.A. subsidiary 100.00% 206.1 206.1
ING Ustugi dla Biznesu S.A. subsidiary 100.00% 15.9 15.9
Nowe Ustugi S.A. subsidiary 100.00% 0.1 0.0
Solver Sp. z 0.0. subsidiary 88.93% 17.0 17.0

269.3 269.2

All the Bank's subsidiaries operate in Poland.

23. Non-financial assets

2015 2014
Investment properties 52.9 60.0
Property, plant and equipment 574.1 581.7
Intangible assets 409.1 360.8

10361 10025

23.1. Investment properties

2015 2014
Opening value 60.0 0.0
Additions, due to: 1.1 59.6
merger with a subsidiary 0.0 59.6
Disposals, due to: -7.7 -2.4
reclassification to own real properties -7.7 2.4
Revaluation: 0.6 2.8
Included in profit or loss * 0.6 2.8
Closing value 52.9 60.0

*) in line Net income on the other basic activities, in detailed item Net income on the investment properties

There are neither legal constraints on the investment property nor contractual obligations relating to
the purchase of the aforementioned real property.

On account of the investment property ownership, the Bank posted rental income and incurred
maintenance costs, which were recognised in the income statement under item Net income on other
basic activities.
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23.2. Property, plant and equipment

2015 2014
Real estate and leasehold improvements 305.0 328.0
Computer hardware 60.8 51.8
Other property, plant and equipment 1719 164.6
Construction in progress 36.4 37.3
Total 574.1 581.7

2015

i g

fzs 3y fzE gd

g8 = 525 28 =

R - - 5
Opening gross value 686.6 228.0 461.2 37.3 1413.1
Additions, including: 42.1 34.7 70.0 137.2 284.0
purchases 0.0 0.0 0.0 137.2 137.2
investment take-overs 33.4 347 70.0 0.0 138.1
reclassification from assets held for sale 7.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.7
other 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.0
Disposals, including: -52.3 -24.5 -48.5 -138.1 -263.4
sale and liquidation -27.3 -24.5 -42.0 0.0 -93.8
investment takeovers 0.0 0.0 0.0 -138.1 -138.1
reclassification to assets held for sale -24.8 0.0 -4.6 0.0 -29.4
other -0.2 0.0 -1.9 0.0 -2.1
Revaluation: -9.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 -9.5
Included in comprehensive income * -3.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 -3.7
Included in profit or loss** -5.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 -5.8
Closing gross value 666.9 238.2 482.7 36.4 14242
Opening accumulated depreciation/amortisation -358.6 -176.2 -296.6 0.0 -831.4
Movements, including:: -3.3 -1.2 -14.2 0.0 -18.7
amortisation charges -26.8 -25.2 -52.6 0.0 -104.6
sale and liquidation 17.4 24.0 34.8 0.0 76.2
reclassification to assets held for sale 7.1 0.0 3.6 0.0 10.7
other -1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -1.0
Closing accumulated depreciation/amortisation -361.9 -177.4 -310.8 0.0 -850.1

Closing net value

*) in detailed item revaluation reserve from measurement of property, plant and equipment
**) in line General and administrative expenses, in detailed item Maintenance and rental of buildings
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2014
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Opening gross value 659.8 201.4 422.3 32.6 1316.1
Additions, including: 117.5 31.6 58.2 123.3 330.6
purchases 0.0 0.0 0.0 123.3 123.3
investment take-overs 30.0 315 57.1 0.0 118.6
reclassification from assets held for sale 3.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.4
merger with the subsidiary 62.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 62.1
other 22.1 0.0 11 0.0 23.2
Disposals, including: -58.2 -5.0 -19.3 -118.6 -201.1
sale and liquidation -2.6 -4.8 -8.5 0.0 -15.9
investment takeovers 0.0 0.0 0.0 -118.6 -118.6
reclassification to assets held for sale -26.6 0.0 -4.1 0.0 -30.7
other -29.0 -0.2 -6.7 0.0 -35.9
Revaluation: -32.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 -32.5
Included in comprehensive income * 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3
Included in profit or loss** -32.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 -32.8
Closing gross value 686.6 228.0 461.2 37.3 14131
Opening accumulated depreciation/amortisation -328.1 -157.7 -268.0 0.0 -753.8
Movements, including:: -30.5 -18.5 -28.6 0.0 -77.6
amortisation charges -38.8 -23.0 -38.3 0.0 -100.1
sale and liquidation 2.6 4.6 7.8 0.0 15.0
reclassification to assets held for sale 6.7 0.0 3.0 0.0 9.7
merger with the subsidiary 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 -0.1
other -1.0 0.0 -1.1 0.0 2.1
Closing accumulated depreciation/amortisation -358.6 -176.2 -296.6 0.0 -831.4
Closing net value 328.0 51.8 164.6 37.3 581.7

*) in detailed item revaluation reserve from measurement of property, plant and equipment
**) in line General and administrative expenses, in detailed item Maintenance and rental of buildings

The item Real estate and leasehold improvements comprises, among others, land whose worth
considering the fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 was PLN 3.9 million (PLN 5.0 million
as at 31 December 2014).

There are no legal constraints on property, plant and equipment.

Contractual obligations to purchase property, plant and equipment

In 2015, the Bank concluded agreements with counterparties that in the future will effect increase in
the value of property, plant and equipment of PLN 3.0 million. These are framework agreements and
their value will be estimated under cost overviews developed in performance thereof. The
agreements refer to real properties (buildings and structures), leasehold improvements, non-current
assets under construction and other non-current assets.

ING
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In 2014, the Bank concluded framework agreements concerning real properties (buildings and

structures), leasehold improvements, non-current assets under construction and other non-current
assets of PLN 1.1 million.

23.3. Intangible assets

2015 2014
Goodwill 223.3 223.3
Software 154.6 116.7
Outlays for intangible assets 29.2 19.1
Other 2.0 1.7
Total 409.1 360.8

2015
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Additions, including: 223.3 670.9 19.1 8.5 921.8
purchases 0.0 117.0 129.1 2.0 248.1
investment takeovers 0.0 0.0 129.1 0.0 129.1
Opening gross value 0.0 117.0 0.0 2.0 119.0
Disposals, including: 0.0 -0.2 -119.0 0.0 -119.2
investment takeovers 0.0 0.0 -119.0 0.0 -119.0
sale and liquidation 0.0 -0.2 0.0 0.0 -0.2
Closing gross value 223.3 787.7 29.2 10.5 1050.7
Opening accumulated depreciation/amortisation 0.0 -554.2 0.0 -6.8 -561.0
Movements, including: 0.0 -78.9 0.0 -1.7 -80.6
amortisation charges 0.0 -78.9 0.0 -1.7 -80.6
Closing accumulated depreciation/amortisation 0.0 -633.1 0.0 -8.5 -641.6
Closing net value 223.3 154.6 29.2 2.0 409.1
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2014

g 2

. 8 2
3 93 £, gy
O (%] o & O o (=]
Opening gross value 223.3 574.2 41.1 6.8 845.4
Additions, including: 0.0 96.8 76.2 1.7 174.7
purchases 0.0 0.0 76.2 0.0 76.2
investment takeovers 0.0 96.5 0.0 1.7 98.2
merger with the subsidiary 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.3
Disposals, including: 0.0 -0.1 -98.2 0.0 -98.3
investment takeovers 0.0 0.0 -98.2 0.0 -98.2
sale and liquidation 0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.0 -0.1
Closing gross value 223.3 670.9 19.1 8.5 921.8
Opening accumulated depreciation/amortisation 0.0 -483.6 0.0 -5.9 -489.5
Movements, including: 0.0 -70.6 0.0 -0.9 -71.5
amortisation charges 0.0 -70.5 0.0 -0.9 -71.4
merger with the subsidiary 0.0 -0.2 0.0 0.0 -0.2
other 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1
Closing accumulated depreciation/amortisation 0.0 -554.2 0.0 -6.8 -561.0

Closing net value 19.1

Contractual obligations to purchase intangible assets

In 2015, the Bank concluded with counterparties the agreements that in the future will effect
increase in the value of intangible assets of PLN 8.5 million. Since these are framework agreements,
the said amount is not ultimate. As in the previous year, those agreements concern licence purchase
and computer software implementation.

As at 2014 yearend, the Bank held the agreements for licence purchase and computer software
implementation totalling PLN 7.9 million. These agreements were partly framework arrangements.

Impairment test of cash generating units with respective goodwill

The goodwill impairment test is carried out at least once every year, irrespective of identification of
any objective evidence of impairment.

At the Bank, the impairment test is made for the goodwill created as a result of the in-kind
contribution of ING Bank NV branch. The smallest identifiable cash-generating units were determined
and goodwill totalling PLN 223.3 million was assigned thereto. No other additional elements of
intangible value and indefinite useful life were identified that could be assigned to the identified
cash-generating units. The test input data for the cover the economic capital, risk-weighted assets
and profit before tax per segment.

The test is performed using the model that calculates and compares the current value of free cash
flow of the unit to the estimated book value of the unit’s funds. The free cash flows of the unit are
defined as net profits less capital needed to maintain the solvency ratio at the required level. To
discount the cash flows, the discount rate of 8.07% is used that represents the average weighted
cost of capital. The remaining assumptions include: forecasts of income tax rate, nominal growth
rate after the forecast period (3%) and predicted 3M WIBOR rate.
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The recoverable value was determined based on the estimation of the useable value of the assets
component taking into account the estimated forecast of expected future cash flows generated
during the continued use. The cash flow forecasts are based on rational assumptions that reflect the
most accurate appraisal of the management regarding all the conditions that will appear during the
remaining lifetime of the assets. The cash flow forecasts are based on mid-term plan approved by
the Bank and the strategy covering the maximum period of the next three years. The data regarding
the subsequent two years come from extrapolation. Extrapolation assumes that the cash flow
generating centre will maintain the gross profit to risk weighted assets ratio at the level from the last
year of the Bank's forecast and its profits will increase by previously determined growth rate.
Legitimacy of the assumptions made is verified periodically, and any divergence between the cash
flows estimated based on the future cash flows and the actual ones is analysed as appropriate.

As at 31 December 2015, net present value of cash flows was PLN 5,238.8 million.The test showed
the surplus of present value over the net book value of the cash-generating unit, totalling PLN
3,051.8 million thus, no impairment was determined. For the discount rate lower by 1p.p. the surplus
of present value of cash flows over the net book value of the cash-generating unit would amount to
PLN 4,089.5 million; for the rate higher by 1p.p. the surplus of the present value of cash flows over
the net book value of the cash-generating unit would be PLN 2,351.2 million.

24. Assets held for sale

2015 2014
Property, plant and equipment held for sale 38.4 28.4
Shares in the associated entities held for sale 0.0 40.0

Total 38.4 68.4

2015 2014
Opening value 68.4 28.3
Additions, including: 18.7 60.0
reclassification from investments in subsidiaries and associated entities 0.0 40.0
reclassification from property, plant and equipment 18.7 20.0
Disposals, including: -44.5 -18.8
sale -44.5 -18.5
other 0.0 -0.3
Revaluation: -4.2 -1.1
Included in profit or loss* -4.2 -1.1
Closing value 38.4 68.4

*) in line General and administrative expenses, in detailed item Maintenance and rental of buildings

ING.
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As at 31 December 2015, the amount of Property, plant and equipment held for sale included:

N

» 16 real properties (buildings together with land) which were reclassified from Property, plant
and equipment. The real properties are available to be immediately sold in their current
condition. The Bank intends to sell the abovementioned real properties using services of a
specialized company that searches for potential buyers with the use of various, available
sources (advertisements, direct mailing, contact with other real property agencies, etc.).
The real property should be sold within 12 months from the reclassification date.

» Assets acquired from debt collection including real properties (buildings and land) and means
of transport. The Bank intends to sell the said assets by using available ways of selling,
inclusive of among others: tender procedure.

In Q3 2015, the Group concluded the sale operation for 20% of shares of ING Powszechne
Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A to ING Continental Europe Holdings B.V. (ING CEH). For details of the
aforesaid share purchase agreement, refer to Chapter Il. Significant events in 2015, item 9. Sale of
shares of ING Powszechne Towarzystwo Emerytalne S.A. Company.

25. Income tax assets / liabilities

2015 2014
Income tax liabilities, including: 153.7 248.5
Liabilities of the current income tax 20.6 30.5
Reserve on deferred income tax 133.1 218.0

Movements in temporary differences during the year

2015
- ]
Changes carried
Balance as at through  Changes carried Balance as at
01Jan 2015 profit or loss through equity 31 Dec 2015

Deferred tax assets
Interest accrued -31.3 9.2 0.0 -22.1
Revaluation -118.6 0.0 20.8 -97.8
Impairment losses on credit receivables -133.0 23.9 0.0 -109.1
Other provisions -45.8 0.8 0.0 -45.0
Employee benefits -34.9 1.2 0.0 -33.7
Correction due to effective interest rate -12.3 0.0 0.0 -12.3
Other -15.9 0.0 0.0 -15.9
Total -391.8 35.1 20.8 -335.9
Deferred tax provision
Interest accrued 35.4 -32.7 0.0 2.7
zzt;::?qet?; r?f the difference between tax and balance sheet 53 07 0.0 16
Settlement of prepayments/accruals due to depreciation/
amortisation resulting from the investment relief >8 0.4 0.0 >4
Revaluation 556.9 0.9 -113.4 Lbb 4
Other 9.4 5.5 0.0 14.9
Total 609.8 -27.4 -113.4 469.0
Deferred tax disclosed in the balance sheet 218.0 7.7 -92.6 133.1
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2014
- ]
Changes Changes
Balance carried carried  Merger with Balance
asat through through the as at
01Jan2014  profitorloss equity subsidiary 31 Dec 2014
Deferred tax assets
Interest accrued -35.0 3.7 0.0 0.0 -31.3
Revaluation -37.7 0.0 -80.9 0.0 -118.6
Impairment losses on credit receivables -137.4 4.4 0.0 0.0 -133.0
Other provisions -48.4 2.6 0.0 0.0 -45.8
Employee benefits -31.3 -3.6 0.0 0.0 -34.9
Correction due to effective interest rate -12.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 -12.3
Other -13.2 0.0 0.0 -2.7 -15.9
Total -315.3 7.1 -80.9 -2.7 -391.8
Deferred tax provision
Interest accrued 73.2 -37.8 0.0 0.0 35.4
ziglgz?jt?gsfthe difference between tax and balance sheet 10.9 86 0.0 0.0 23
Revaluation 157.9 0.0 399.0 0.0 556.9
Other 4.8 39 0.0 0.7 9.4

Total 399.0

Deferred tax disclosed in the balance sheet -36.0

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Unrecognised deferred tax assets relate to the specific provisions whose recovery will not become
probable. As at the 2015 yearend, the amount of respective unrecognized temporary differences was
PLN1.5 million (expiry date of temporary differences: 2017) compared with PLN 1.8 million as at the
end of 2014 (expiry date of temporary differences: 2016).

Deferred tax recognised directly in equity

2015 2014
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets 117.0 131.6
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 2.9 6.3
Revaluation of cash flow hedging instruments 225.3 299.8
Actuarial gains/losses 0.6 0.7

358 438
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26. Other assets

2015 2014
Prepayments, including: 76.2 74.0
accrued income 25.4 331
commission-related settlements 23.7 16.2
prepaid bank operating expenses 25.5 23.0
expenses to be settled 1.2 1.6
other 0.4 0.1
Other assets, including: 43.8 36.7
settlements of material purchases 4.0 3.6
interbank settlements 14.4 8.2
settlements with customers 5.8 1.4
public and legal settlements 0.4 0.2
other 19.2 23.3

Total 120.0 110.7
Including financial assets 43.8 36.7

27. Liabilities due to other banks

2015 2014
Current accounts 15271 1823.2
Interbank deposits 316.5 1818.7
Other liabilities 11.8 2.3
Total 1855.4 3644.2

Liabilities due to other banks by maturity

2015 2014
up to 1 month 1845.8 3644.2
over 1 month and up to 3 months 9.6 0.0
Total 1855.4 3644.2

28. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2015 2014

Financial liabilities held for trading, including: 162.8 56.9
- repo transactions 162.8 56.9
Book short position in trading securities 466.6 860.5
Total 629.4 917.4

ING &4
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss by maturity

2015 2014
up to 1 month 162.8 56.9
over 3 months and up to 1 year 0.0 1335
over 1 year and up to 5 years 249.4 595.4
over 5 years 217.2 131.6
Total 629.4 917.4

29. Liabilities due to customers

2015 2014
Deposits 86 596.8 74 652.3
Liabilities under cash collateral 300.1 256.8
Other liabilities 486.8 416.9
Total liabilities due to customers, including:
due to entities from the financial sector other than banks 2 667.0 2 568.8
due to entities from the non-financial sector 83 084.8 70 881.4
due to entities from the government and self-government institutions’ sector 1631.9 1875.8

Liabilities due to entities from the financial sector other than banks

2015 2014

Deposits, including: 2 610.4 2 468.1
- current accounts 2 284.2 1717.6

- term deposits 326.2 750.5
Liabilities under cash collateral 0.5 0.4
Other liabilities 56.1 100.3
Total 2667.0 2 568.8
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Liabilities due to entities from the non-financial sector

2015 2014

Business entities, including: 24272.4 20 746.2
Deposits, including: 23615.3 20238.5
- current accounts 13129.0 10 648.1

- savings accounts 8 000.5 6139.6

- term deposits 2 485.8 3450.8
Liabilities under cash collateral 244.1 202.4
Other liabilities 413.0 305.3
Households, including: 58 812.4 50135.2
Deposits, including: 58 751.6 50077.2
- current accounts 9730.6 7575.4

- savings accounts 42 989.9 36 622.6

- term deposits 6031.1 5879.2
Liabilities under cash collateral 49.5 49.3
Other liabilities 11.3 8.7
Total 83 084.8 70 881.4

Liabilities due to entities from the government and self-government institutions’ sector

2015 2014

Deposits, including: 1619.5 1868.5
- current accounts 1530.6 1809.4

- term deposits 88.9 59.1
Liabilities under cash collateral 6.0 4.7
Other liabilities 6.4 2.6
Total 1631.9 1875.8

Liabilities due to customers by maturity

2015 2014
up to 1 month 81970.0 70 124.2
over 1 month and up to 3 months 2 003.8 1762.5
over 3 months and up to 1 year 32144 3029.1
over 1 year and up to 5 years 192.3 406.9
over 5 years 3.2 3.3
Total 87 383.7 75 326.0
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30. Liabilities under repurchase transactions made with customers

The Bank has been presenting customer receivables under reverse repo and sell-buy-back
transactions under a separate item of the statement of financial position. Such presentation is to
ensure separate recognition of highly volatile assets measured at amortised cost from stable assets.

Reverse repo/ sell-buy-back transactions (purchase of financial instruments to be sold back in the

future at the same price plus interest determined upfront) are used as a liquidity management tool
to deposit short-term cash surpluses.

At the end of 2015 and 2014, the following assets were sold under repo transactions made with
customers:

2015
e
Repurchase date Market value Carrying amount
Debt securities 2016-01-04 43.3 43.4
Debt securities 2016-01-05 4.1 4.1
Total 47.4 47.5
2014
e
Repurchase date Market value Carrying amount
Debt securities 2015-01-02 28.5 28.9
Debt securities 2015-01-05 0.8 0.8
Total 29.3 29.7

31. Liabilities under issue of debt securities

2015 2014

Liabilities under issue of debt securities, including: 866.3 866.5
- Bonds issued by ING Bank Slgski S.A. 866.3 866.5
Total 866.3 866.5

Liabilities under issue of debt securities by maturity

2015 2014
over 1to 5 years 866.3 866.5
Total 866.3 866.5
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32. Provisions

2015 2014
Provision for issues in dispute 3.3 20.4
Provision for off-balance sheet liabilities 26.1 18.3
Provision for retirement benefits 20.6 19.1
Provision for unused holidays 13.8 12.5
Total 63.8 70.3

2015
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Opening balance 20.4 18.3 19.1 12.5 70.3
provisions recognised 0.7 20.8 0.9 1.3 23.7
provisions reversed -1.9 -13.5 0.0 0.0 -15.4
provisions utlised -15.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 -15.9
exchange rate changes 0.0 0.5 0.0 0.0 0.5
actuarial gains / loosses 0.0 0.0 0.6 0.0 0.6
Closing balance 3.3 26.1 20.6 13.8 63.8
Expected provision settlement period:
up to 1 year 1.5 0.0 1.7 13.8 17.0
over to 1 year 1.8 26.1 18.9 0.0 46.8

*) The amount of utilised provisions for litigations comprises PLN-14.1 million worth of payment of the fine imposed on the
Bank under the President of the Office of Competition and Consumer Protection’s decision in 2006. The decision of the Office of
Competition and Consumer Protection became final and binding in consequence of the judgement of the Appeals Court in
Warsaw, made in 2015. In the previous years, the Bank provisioned for the projected costs of the said fine in 100%. For details
of the judgment of the Appeals Court as regards the fine imposed by the Office of Competition and Consumer Protection, refer

to Chapter Il. Significant events in 2015, item 8. Judgement of Appeals Court as regards the fine imposed by the Office of
Competition and Consumer Protection in 2006.
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2014
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Opening balance 20.6 13.5 18.9 10.7 63.7
provisions recognised 7.1 15.8 1.7 1.8 26.4
provisions reversed -1.3 -11.8 0.0 0.0 -13.1
provisions utlised -6.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -6.0
exchange rate changes 0.0 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.8
actuarial gains / loosses 0.0 0.0 -1.5 0.0 -1.5
Closing balance 20.4 18.3 19.1 12.5 70.3
Expected provision settlement period:
up to 1 year 0.2 0.0 1.6 12.5 14.3
over to 1 year 20.2 18.3 17.5 0.0 56.0

Provision for issues in dispute

The value of the proceedings conducted in 2015 concerning liabilities and debt claims did not exceed
10% of the Bank's equity.

The Bank is of the opinion that none of the proceedings conducted in 2015 before court, competent
authority for arbitration proceedings or public administration authority, pose a risk to the Bank’s
financial liquidity, individually or in total.

Provision for retirement benefits

Provisions for retirement severance pay are estimated on the basis of actuarial valuation
with discount rate, which at the end of 2015 stood at 3.0% (2.7% at the 2014 yearend). The actuarial
valuation-based provision is recognised and reviewed per annum.

Provision for retirement benefits -revision of the balance-sheet liability

2015 2014

Opening balance 19.1 18.9
Costs included in the income statement, including: 1.6 2.0
- regular employment costs 1.2 1.3

- costs of interest 0.4 0.7
Actuarial gains / losses 0.6 -1.5
Paid benefits -0.7 -0.3
Closing balance 20.6 19.1
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33. Other liabilities

2015 2014

Accruals, including: 322.2 337.5
due to employee benefits 201.4 207.1
- variable remuneration programme 48.9 44.2
due to commissions 99.9 103.5
other 20.9 26.9
Other liabilities, including: 465.0 500.4
interbank settlements 225.8 269.2
settlements with suppliers 183.8 174.2
public and legal settlements 38.7 36.1
other 16.7 20.9

Total 787.2 837.9

34. Share capital
The Bank's share capital is PLN 130,100,000 and is sub-divided into:

» 92,600,000 A-series ordinary bearer's shares with face value of PLN 1.00 each, and
» 37,500,000 B-series ordinary bearer's shares with face value of PLN 1.00 each.

Each ordinary share entitles its holder to dividend and one vote during the general meeting.

35. Revaluation reserve

2015 2014

Revaluation reserve from measurement of available-for-sale financial assets 498.5 560.7
- including deferred tax -117.0 -131.6
Revaluation reserve from measurement of property, plant and equipment 12.4 26.9
- including deferred tax -2.9 -6.3
Revaluation reserve from measurement of cash flow hedging instruments 960.6 1278.3
- including deferred tax -225.3 -299.8
Actuarial gains / losses 2.6 3.1
- including deferred tax -0.6 -0.7
Total 1474.1 1869.0
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2015
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Stan na poczgtek okresu 560.7 -131.6 26.9 -6.3 12783 -299.8 31 -0.7 1869.0
gains/losses on remeasurement of
available- for-sale financial assets carried 13.4 -3.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 13.4

through equity

reclassified to the financial result asa

result of sale of available-for-sale -47.2 111 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -47.2
financial assets

amortisation of gains or losses previously
recognised in equity concerning

securities re-classified from the available- -28.4 6.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -28.4
for-sale portfolio to the held-to-maturity

portfolio

effective part of cash flow hedging 0.0 0.0 0.0 00 3177 745 00 00 -317.7
instruments revaluation ! ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ '
remeasurement of property, plant and ~ )
equipment 0.0 0.0 3.7 0.8 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 3.7
disposal of fixed assets 0.0 0.0 -10.8 2.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -10.8
actuarial gains / losses 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.5 0.1 -0.5
Closing balance

2014
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s ) < s a £ ESt 2O 5 = k=l St
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el g ¢zg g L2y g £ g
c 206 3 c o v c @ = 9] S
S EY © o S £ @ o o E & A~ o =
S5 DL —= o 5 g 8 o E=R Ty o S [S)
S S §5.8 £ S 5§ £ S 509 £ = £
23T e T 232 hS] 23 < © S hS] =
S S E 5 = S ot = S Sz = 3 =
328¢8 S g 2o S g 23 S £ S S
x € 5 & £ x E& £ x E« £ < ES =4
Opening balance 273.2 -64.1 329 -1.7 205.5 -48.1 1.8 -0.4 513.4
gains/losses on remeasurement of
available- for-sale financial assets carried 291.8 -68.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 291.8

through equity
reclassified to the financial result asa

result of sale of available-for-sale -4.3 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -4.3
financial assets

effective part of cash flow hedging

instruments revaluation 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1072.8 -251.7 0.0 0.0 1072.8
g e propery plantend 00 00 02 -01 00 00 00 00 02
disposal of fixed assets 0.0 0.0 -6.2 15 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -6.2
actuarial gains / losses 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 13 -0.3 1.3
settlement of subsidiary acquisition 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Closing balance
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36. Retained earnings

2015 2014
Other supplementary capital 65.4 65.4
Reserve capital 5 466.6 4969.1
General risk fund 1110.2 1060.2
Retained earnings 93.3 81.8
Result for the current year 1140.0 1067.9
Total 7 875.5 7 244.4
2015
-]
other result
supplemen- reserve general retained forthe
tary capital capital risk fund earnings  current year TOTAL
Opening balance 65.4 4969.1 1060.2 1149.7 0.0 72444
net result for the current period 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1140.0 1140.0
profit allocation, including: 0.0 497.5 50.0 -1067.9 0.0 -520.4
- profit written off to reserve capital 0.0 497.5 0.0 -497.5 0.0 0.0
- profit written off to general risk fund 0.0 0.0 50.0 -50.0 0.0 0.0
- dividend 0.0 0.0 0.0 -520.4 0.0 -520.4
gzr:i;ﬁ:;iment of property, plant and 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
disposal of fixed assets 0.0 0.0 0.0 115 0.0 115
Closing balance 65.4 5 466.6 1110.2 93.3 1140.0 7875.5
2014
-]
other result
supplemen- reserve general retained forthe
tary capital capital risk fund earnings  current year TOTAL
Opening balance 65.4 46715 1010.2 934.9 0.0 6682.0
net result for the current period 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1067.9 1067.9
profit allocation, including: 0.0 297.6 50.0 -920.0 0.0 -572.4
- profit written off to reserve capital 0.0 297.6 0.0 -297.6 0.0 0.0
- profit written off to general risk fund 0.0 0.0 50.0 -50.0 0.0 0.0
- dividend 0.0 0.0 0.0 -572.4 0.0 -572.4
;ZTizﬁz:iment of property, plant and 0.0 0.0 0.0 43 0.0 43
disposal of fixed assets 0.0 0.0 0.0 7.7 0.0 1.7
settlement of subsidiary acquisition 0.0 0.0 0.0 63.5 0.0 63.5
Closing balance 65.4 4969.1 1060.2 81.8 1067.9 7244.4
Supplementary capital

Supplementary capital is formed from appropriations from profit after tax, surpluses generated
under issue of shares above their face value and extra contributions paid up by the shareholders to
be used for covering balance-sheet losses. The decision on the use of the supplementary capital is
taken at the General Meeting.
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Reserve capital

Reserves are established regardless of the supplementary capital formed from the appropriations
from profit after tax, in the amount resolved at the General Meeting. The reserves are used for
covering special losses and expenses. The decision on the use of the reserves is taken at the General
Meeting.

General Risk Fund

The General Risk Fund is established in accordance with the Banking Law Act from the
post-tax profits and is used for unidentified risk of banking activity. The decision on the use of the
Fund is taken by the Management Board.

Dividend payout
On 15 December 2015, the Polish Financial Supervision Authority (PFSA) published their stance on the
rules of 2015-dividend payout by banks in 2016.

In order to ensure further stable operations of banks in Poland, PFSA recommends the dividend policy
to banks which will further consolidate their capital base and adjust it to the levels held by other
European Union member states.

The PFSA recommends that the dividend can be paid out only by those banks which satisfy all of the
below criteria:

> the bank is not covered by rehabilitation proceedings,
> BION score is not lower than 2.5,

» their financial leverage is above 5%,

> Tier 1 ratio plus the security buffer:

e banks with over 5% share in the non-financial sector deposits - from 13.25% plus 75% of
potential capital add-on for FX loans risk,

e other commercial banks - over 11.25% plus 75% of potential capital add-on for FX loans
risk.

PFSA recommends the following:

» up to 50% of the profit earned be released by the banks meeting regulatory expectations
concerning the total capital ratio i.e. the ones with total capital ratio over 13.25% plus 100%
of potential capital add-on for FX loans risk levied by PFSA on banks individually on 23
October 2015

» up to 100% of the profit earned be released by the banks meeting regulatory expectations
concerning the total capital ratio plus the safety buffer:

e the banks with over 5% share in the non-financial sector deposits - having the total
capital ratio over 16.25% plus 100% of potential capital add-on for FX loans risk levied by
PFSA on banks individually on 23 October 2015,

e other commercial banks - having the total capital ratio over 14.25% plus 100% of
potential capital add-on for FX loans risk levied by PFSA on banks individually on 23
October 2015.

Banks will receive individual instructions on the dividend policy from the PFSA Chairman based on
their financial results as at 31 December 2015.

ING &
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37. Currency structure of statement of financial position and off-balance sheet items

Hereinbelow, the statement of financial position of the Bank and contingent liabilities were presented
per base currencies. The following currency rates were applied to calculate values in original
currency:

31.12.2015 31.12.2014
EUR 4.2615 4.2623
usb 3.9011 3.5072

CHF 3.9394 3.5447
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2015
- 00000000000}
EUR usb CHF otI]er
currencies
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION PLN translgtf;t:r: in currency trunslt;]tfitc?nr in currency tromslt;]tf;tc:enr in currency transl((;]::it oer: TOTAL
into PLN into PLN into PLN into PLN)
Assets
Cashin hand and balances with the Central Bank 3120.0 352.9 82.8 817 20.9 7.8 2.0 27.3 3589.7
Loans and receivables to other banks 232.2 692.8 162.6 62.7 16.1 14 0.4 24.0 1013.1
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 11271 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1127.1
Valuation of derivatives 1385.5 326.0 76.5 237.9 61.0 40.0 10.2 15 1990.9
Investments 222831 1195.6 280.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 23478.7
Derivative hedge instruments 2277.0 177.8 41.7 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2454.8
Loans and receivables to customers 54 948.6 11857.2 2782.4 1284.2 329.2 1395.2 354.2 148.2 69 633.4
Receivables from customers due to repo transactions 13544 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1354.4
Investments in controlled entities 269.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 269.3
Non-financial assets 1036.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1036.1
Assets held for sale 384 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 38.4
Tax assets 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Other assets 117.8 2. 120.0

1 0.5 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
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2015
-]
EUR usb CHF ott_1er
currencies
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION PLN translgtf;t:r: in currency trunslg;t:rwr in currency tromslt;]ti